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THE EAST INDIA COWMPANY AND THE ECONOKY OF BENGAL
FROM 1704 to 1740.

Abstract -
of the thesis for the degree of Ph.D. of the
University of London.

Submitted by Sukumar Bhattacharyya.

In this thesis an attempt has been made to give a
picture of the economic development in Bengal from 1704
to 1740 with special reference té the effect and influence
of the East India Company. The year 1704 marks the advent
of Murshid Kuli Khan to the helm of affairs in Bengal for
all practical purposes. The establishment at the turn
of the century, or the influence of the Company in Bengal,
which was strengthened by the farman granted iﬁ 17%7 by
the lioghul Emperor Farrukhsiyar, brought into prominence
a conflict of interests between the Coupany and other forces
which were then dominant in the economy of Bengal.

The Fort William Cpnsultations which flow from 1704 to
1740 without a break, reinforced by the factory records
and letters and despatches which passed between the
Directors of the Company in London and their agents in
Calcutta help us'to build up the story of the impact of the

East India Company on Bengal.




The thesis divided into seven chapters.

Chapter I gives an account of the economy of Bengal
at the turn of thé century, . v

Chapter II traces the growth of the Company's
influence in Bengal and its relations with the Government.

Chapter 11l deals with the position of other
Buropean traders in Bengal,especially the Ostend Company.

Chapter IV seeks to explain the system of currency
and show how the iacreasing penetration of the Company
led to a conflict of interests with the indigenous bankers
and traders.

Chapter V deals with markets and trade with special
reference to saltpetre, silk and cotton goods.,

Chapter VI describes the general econonmic conditions,
the state of art and industries and the extent of the
contact of the East India Company with the people.

Chepter VII draws some conclusions.
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THE EAST INDIA COMPANY AND THE ECONOMY OF EENGAL

from

1704 to 1740

Chapter I

Introduction

Bengal at the turn of the century

At the end of the seventeenth and beginning of
the eighteenth century, the mighty oghul empire was
in a process of disintegration. Although Aurangzib,
the last of the Great Moghuls, had practically brought
the whole of the Indian sub-continent under one sceptre,
the forces of disruption had asserted themselves long
before his death and had become too strong for him to
- cerush., While the outlying areas in the south and in
the west were taxing all the energy and resources of
the wily Emperor, the eastern region comprising the rich
provinces of Bengal, Bihar and Orissa was comparatively
quiet. But the imperial authority in Bengal had been
rudely shaken by the rebellion of Shobha Singh (1695-96),



(2)

a zamindar of Chandrakona in Midnapur, who captured
Burdwan and was joined by Rahim Khan, the leader of
the Afgans in Orissa (1).

The news of the rebellion led Aurangzib to
dismiss the indolent Governor, Ibrahim Khan, and replaée
him by his grandson, Prince Muhammad Azimuddin, later
entitled Azim-ush Shan. Though the imperial prestige
was, to some extent, retrieved by Zabardast Khan, the
son of Ibrahim Khan, even before the arrival of the
Prince, the event showed the weakness and helplessness
of the Moghul government against determined aggression,
while at the same time it demonstrated the superiority
of the armed strength of the Europeans who had settled
in Bengal. For, in fact, the first rebuff to Sobha Singh
was given by the Dutch of Chinsura. It was their military
and naval power which arrested the progress of the rebel
forces and compelled them to keep to the western bank
of the Ganges (2). By 1698,Azim-ush Shan succeeded in
destroying the strongholds of the rebels and re-asserting

é1g "Riyazu-s-Salatin", Translated by Salam, p.229-3%1,
2 "Riyazu-s-Salatin", p. 232.
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the imperial power. The hands of the royal Subahdar
of Bengal were strengthened by the appointment’of
Murshid Kuli Khan as the provincial Diwan in December
1700.

The new Diwan, who had already distinguished
himself as an able finance officer in the Deccan, soon
made his mark in Bengal. His abilities as a financier,
his efficiency in the collection of revenue and the
regularity with which he despatched it to the starving
imperial exchequer made him a great favourite of the
Emperor,

Murshid Kuli Khan was no respecter of persons.
His strict supervision of the revenue administration
touched the pocket even of the Prince Subahdar, who,
like some of the most noted Governors of Bengal did not
scruple to have recourse to private trade. The greedy
and tactless Azim-ush Shan was not chastened even by
the mild rebuke administered him by his grandfather.
He became rather jealous of the Diwan who seemed to
enjoy the confidence of the Emperor.

Apprehensive of the designs of the Subahdar,
even of hostilities against him, Murshid Kuli Khan
transferred his residence and also the Diwani from
Dacca, the provincial capital, to the little town of
Muksudabad on the bank of the Bhagirathi in 170k.
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The ostensible ground for transfer was the central
situation of the place, later known as Murshidabad,
as compared with Dacca which was in the eastern part
of the province (1). Along with the Diwan came
Manickchand, the head of a rich banking family, whose
successor Fatehchand was later honoured with the
title of Jagat-Seth. A new chapter in the political
and economic history of Bengal was about to open.
Murshid Kuli Khan's merits were rewarded with
guick promotiou, and'eveﬁ Pefore his formal appointment
as Subahdar, he became the defacto ruler of Bengal. By
the death of Aurangzib, in 1707, the highly centralised
Moghul empire lost its kernel, and the forces of
disintegration were let loose. But Murshid Kuli Khan,
as Diwan and later as Subahdar of Bengal, remained
faithful to the Timurid occupants of the Imperial
throne at Delhi in the midst of the turmoils and
disturbances which were occurring elsewhere in India.
The rebellion of Shobha Singh was an event of
more then passing interest. His initial success brought
home to the imperial authorities the supreme necessity

(1) "Riyazu-s-Salatin", pp. 250 - 51.

-~
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of creating strong barriers of defence and afforded

an opportunity to the European traders in Bengal -

the English, the French and the Dutch - to emphasize
the importance of fortifying Calcutta , Chandernagore
and Chinsura, the headquarters of the three trading
communities in eastern India. The Moghuls now welcomed'
the establishment of fortified commercial settlements
and permitted the building up of Fort William in
Calcutta, Fort Orleans at Chandernagore and Fort
Gustavas in Chinsura.

Events which were taking place in Europe were
not without their significance in the history of this
far off region. The English Revolution of 1688, as
Disraeli later remarked in his novel "Sybil", gave
England French wars and Dutch finance; The éccession
Oof the Dutchman, William, on the throne of England
introduced some sort of mutual compromise and
understanding in Anglo-Dutch relations, while the
bitter wars that ensued'between‘England and France
had.their repercussion in India.

The turn of the century witnessed a rivalry
and aniﬁosity among the Englishmeh themselves in
relation to Indian trade, and the spectacle of two

rival companies trying to ingratiate themselves in
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official favour and to outbid each other in commerce
with separate factory houses in Calcutta was certainly
not en edifying episode in the history of the British
enterprise in Bengal. Fortunately for them, the two
Companies were, in 1702, emalgamated in the 'UNITED
COMPANY OF MERCHANTS TRADING TO THE EBAST INDiES', and
thus by the time of Aurangzib's death the English East
India Company which was destiﬁed to become the
successor of the Great Moghuls had a united house,
while the mighty fabric of the Moghul empire began
to tumble in confusion.

The recognition of Fort William as the seat of
a Presidency;in 1700, independent of Madras, removed
all impediments in the way of the Calcutta Council in
dealing with situations as they arose. Subsequent
events were to prove that the small group of merchants
who were entrusted with the organization of the
youngest of the Company's Presidencies would pave the
way for the foundation&énd'development of the British
empire in India. Their efficient and economic
management‘of the factories in Calcutta, Kasimbazar,
Balasore, Patna, Malda and Dacca, the confidence which
they inspired among native merchants by their integrity
and gtraight dealing and the sure market for the Bengal
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textiles, silk and saltpetre provided by them
created a profound impression on the mercantile
classes who found they could repose implicit trust
on the English in their business transactions,

The rich prospects of trade in Bengal and the
comparative autonomy which the proviucé enjoyed,
because of its distance from Delhi, attracted foreign
traders from many parts of the world. For Bengal
was considered to be the store house where a resourceful
trader was almost sure of meking a fortune. Many
were the goods which could be had here in abundance.
Bernier, who visited India in the reign of Aurangzib,
wrote that Bengal was superior to Egypt in resources
and the productivity of her soil. 'Bengal produces
rice in such abundence that it supplies not only the
neighbouring but remote states ... Bengal abounds
likewise in sugar with which it supplies the kingdom
Oof Golkonda and Karnatic ... and Arabia and Mesopotamia ...
and Persia ... There is in Bengal such a quantity of
@otton and silks that the kingdom may be called the
common store house for those two kinds of merchandise,
not of Hindustan only, but of all ncighbouring kingdoms,
and even of Europe. ... The Dutch have some times seven

Or eight hundred natives employed in their silk factory
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at Kasimbazar. The English and other merchants employ
likewise a great'number. ... Bengal is also the
principal emporium for saltpeire. A prodigious
quantity is imported from Patna. The rich exuberance
of the country ... has given rise to a proverb in
common use among the Portuguese, English and Dutch,
that the kingdom of Bengsal has a hundred gates open
for entrance, but not one for departure' (1). |

While the English, the Dutch and the French
were anxious to enter Bengal through its 'hundred
gates' of commerce, théy were not unwelcome to the
Moghul ' rulers. These Europeans, it was supposed,
might counterbalance the Portuguesg hold in the Bay
of Bengal, which, even as early aq}gie reign of Shah
Jahan, had dared challenge the might of the Great Moghul.

In trying to assess the economie position of
Bengal before the rise of the Britishvpower, we should
be on our guard not to place too much reliance on the
writings of the early European travellers, who very
often drew a rather rosy picture of the economie
prosperity of the different regions of India. Struck

(1) 'Travels in the Moghul Empire' by Francois
Bernier, translated by Irving Brock and
revised by V.A.Smith (1914), pp. 437 - 40,
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by the richness and fertility of the Gangetic plains, the
early Europeans were in ecstacy when they wrote about
Bengal. The splendour and magnifecence of oriental @ourts
gorgeously decorated with dazzling jewels and silk were
apt to make a great impression on foreigners as typifying
the wealth of the country, while they sometimes ignored
the fact that the displaﬁ{wealth in the court was not
necessarily indicative of the prosperity of the people |
as a whole. The exceptional opportunities,which fortune
hunters had, of enriching themselves and the quickness
with which they rose to affluence in this area often
influenced the foreign observers in forming an opinion
about the real wealth of the country, which, in fact,
they could hardly determine with certainty.

It is true that Bengal cuuld boast of certain types
of manufactured goods which were prized highly in different
parts of the world. But the people, as a whole, were not
industrialised. The manufactures of Bengal in the eighteenth
century, as in earlier days, could be broadly placed under
two heads. First, there were the village handicrafts,
supplying the simple needs of the local population, in
which there was little scope for variety and distinction.
Secondly, there was another class of handicrafts, which
supplied the needs of the wealthy and consisted of many

varieties. . of fine works of cotton and silk,and of art and
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painting. These works were to find an ever
increasing demand in the markets of the Near East
and Europe.

The expansion of Europe in the eighteenth
century and the growth of wealth that poured into
that continent created a demand fop costly and
luxurious clothes of Indian manufacture which were
deemed to add greaterAdistinction.to their possessor.
So the Indian exports to Europe at the turn of the
century'consisted, on the one hand, of raw products,
such as saltpetre, rice, indigo, pepper, etec.,
which had always a certain market, and on the other,
of silk and cotton textiles for which there grew up
& demand as these products came to be known in
Europe through the merchants trading in the East.
But the scale of the trade was small,

Economically, apart from its dependence on
importing of bullion, Bengal was self-sufficient,
Side by side with the tillers of the soil pursuing
age old methods of cultivation, there existed an
industrial Population graded from the village
craftsman, Supplying the simple utensils of the poor,
to the highly specialised weavers and artificers
manufacturing luxurious commodities which added

brilliance ang dignity to the court and equipped
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the army and retainers of the King and of the
nobility. '

But varied as the occupation of the people
was, the standard of life of the mass of the people
was simple. The people were satisfied with bare
necessities for existencé. Along with the rich
individuals, whose number was small, who clustered
round the court and the darbar, and the rising
commercial settlements of the Europeans, there lived
the inert masses who had limited wants and who were
little affected by the changes that were taking place
at the administrative and commercial centres.

Any attempt at a study of the history of Bengal
in its economic aspects in the eighteenth century
must, of necessity, be concerned mainly with the
activities of the European traders, who had, by this
time, established their position almost as an
essential adjunct to the state, particularly in
relation to foreign commerce. From the days of the
great Akbar, European settlements had been given
facilities to carry on trade between India and the
countries overseas. The earliest of fhem, the
Portuguese, had, by this time, discredited themselves
by their religious zeal and their harsh treatment of

the native population of the country, while the Dutch,
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who had, at one time, appeared to have the greatest
commercial hold on the country, had found that the
spices of the Indies could be disposed of much more
quickly in the'European market yielding an enormous
gain, and consequently they began to concern themselves
more with the rich and profitable trade of the islands
of the Far East than the comparative drudgery of Indo-
European commerce. The control and supervision
exercised on the French Bast India Company by the
Government of Louis XIV gave it little scope for
initiative and independent action. The field,
accordingly, was open to the English East India
Company whose prospects in the Bengal trade were,

at the beginning of the eighteenth century, brighter
than those of any other power.

Since the reign of Shah Jahan, The English

East India Company was permitted to trade freely in
Bengal in retura for a fixed annual peshkask (1) of
Rs 3000 (2). Though the privilege, at first sight,

(1) Peshkash: tax,tribute; lit.,what is first drawn;

first fruits; fine,quit rent;a fine or present to the
ruling power on receiving an appointment or assignment

of revenue, or on the renewal of a grani or the like,
Vide:~ Wwilson, 'Glossary', p. 415,

(2) Bruce, 'Annals',Vol.I,pp.463-k. See also W.Foster's
article entitled 'Gabriel Boughton and the grant of trading
privileges to the English in Bengal,' published in the
'Indian Antiquary',Vol.XL, 1911,and Foster, 'English
Factories in India,1625-60' »P.111,and Appendix, 'Some Bengal
Farmans', pp. 410 - 16,
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seemed . to place the English in a position of great
advantage, the attitude of provincial Governors, which
at times was positively hostile to the English traders,
and the greed of local officers,who were anxious to
enrich themselves at the expense of the foreigners,
unacquainted with the laws and customs of the country,
compelled the Company to spend large sums of money

in deputations'and'presents to the Subahdar, Deputy
Subahdars and a host of other officers and brought
down considerably the margin of its profit.

In spite of the impediments put in their way
and the‘competition.of the European traders in Bengal,
the English had firmly established themselves as a
powerful trading body in Calcutta and had secured
their position before the end of the seventeenth
century., This was marked by the acquisition, in
1698, of the zamindari rights of the three villages
of Sutanati, Kalikata and Govindpur with the permission
of Azim-ush Shan, the then Subahdar of Bengal (1).

The power that was to“be the successor of the
the lioghuls in India had thus already risen in the
eastern horizon and had established itself in Bengal
before the new century dawned. Murshid Kuli Khan, who

(1) British Museum Catalogue of Persian Mss.,
1-3, 4dd. 24039, Fol. 39.
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had presided over the finances of Bengal, practically
since the beginning of the eighteenth century, was not
favourably disposed to the English because of the
loss that resulted to the treasury on account of the
privileges,enjoyed by the East India Company , of
trading in Bengal free of customs only on payment
of Rs 3000 annually. The Company, however, held its
own. The acquisitionvof the zamindari rights over
Calcutta had given it a legal status which proved to
be of great advantage as the century progressed,

Calcutta by its trading facilities began to
attract the commercial and enterprising sections of
the people from all over the province. The security
and peace which this fortified settlement ensured
induced many wealthy families to move Permanently to
the new city, which became the home of a new
mercantile aristocracy. The interests of the
trading and commercial elements in Bengal, Indian
and British, were thus being closely inter-woven,

The first phase of the Anglo-Indian commercial
relations , which began in Calcutta at the turn of
the century, was so peaceful and so mutually beneficial

that steadily, though imperceptibly, a profound éhange




(15)

wasltaking place in the economic life of the entire
province, whose prosperity w§s being closely linked
with the activities of the English merchants. In

the course of half a century, in spite of oceasionall
rifts, the economy of Bengal became s0 much dependent
on the East India Company that the leading elements
among the weélthy and mercantile classes in the
province did not hesitate to throw in their lot with
the English when they had ultimately to make their

choice,
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CHAPTER I1I

TRADE RELATIONS OF THE ENGLISH EAST INDIA COMPANY

Section 1

The Growth of the Company in Bengal.

The earliest factory of the English East India
Company for Bengal was established on 14 May 1633 at
Hariharpur on the Mah&nadi delta. From thence Ralph
Cartwright, the leader of the party, accompanied by
two other Englishmen, Edward Peterford and William
Withall ,proceeded 'further into the country of
Bengalla' and reached Balasore towards the end of
June 1633 (1). The factory at Hugli on the river
bearing the same name was established in 1651. By
1658 another factory was opened at Kasimbazar, the
emporium of silk trade. Next came the factories at
‘Patna and Singiya which became the chief centres of
saltpetre trade. In 1668 a new factory was opened at
Dacca, then cqpitai of Bengal and the principal market

(1) william Bruton, "News from the East Indies or a
Voyage to Bengalld'', 1638, published in Hekluyt's
'Collection of Early Voyages, Travels and Discoveries'
L1018, Ye1. Y, P.. 55,
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for cotton and cotton goods in the province. Two

more factories at Rajmahal and Malda on the Ganges

soon followed. By 1680 the annual investment of the
Company in Bengal rose to £150,000 (1). The foundation
of Calcutta by Job Charnock,in 1690, completed the
process of factory settlement.

These achievements were not accomplished without
friction with local authorities. In fact, from 1633
to i717, when the English got their farman from the
Moghul Emperor Farrukhsiyar, the history of the East
India Company in bengal was one of ups and downs,
Disease and mortality among the Company's servants,
opposition of the earlier European settlers, the
Portuguese end the Dutch, the lukewarmness and even
hostility of the Bengal Government made them shake
their heads many a time, when they thought of the
future of the 'Bengalla' trade. None the less, they
held on.,. They saw brighter prospects for their future
in the cleavages and ruptures that had ensued between
the Moghuls and the Portuguese, in the growing
absorption of the Dutch in the trade of the spice
islands and in the warmth of friendly relations that
grew up between some of their fellow countrymen and

the highest personages of the lioghul empire, both at

S G o ——— — o — ——— . ———— _——— ———— — - . W -~ — - —— —— - - - -~ — - ———

(1) Bruce, 'Amnals', Vol.II, p.451.
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the imperial amd provincial headguarters.

Circumstances favoured the English merchants,
Though fhey were younger as traders in India than
the Portuguese and the Dutch, from 1633 onwards,
that is from the time of their earliest settlement
in Bengal, they succeeded in securing farmans which
enabled them to carry on their trade in the province
on favourable terms. (1)

To trace the history of the development of

English trade in Bengal, one has to go further back
to the year 1615, when Sir Thomas Roe, the Ambassador
of King James I of Englend in the Court of the Great
Moghul, succeeded in obtaining from Jahangir a farman
which permitted the English to reside in Surat and to
travel freely into the interior of the country and to
trade subject to a customs duty of 3% per cent upon
English imports and 2 per cent on 'rials of eight',

that is,on bullion (2).

The imperial order, however, was of little effect
in Bengal. The servants of the Company, who later
tried to open up trade with this area found various
obstacles put in their way by local officials who had

to be won over by freguent presents. But to Sir Thomas

(1) Foster, 'English Factories, 1655-60',
Appendix; Pp. 410 = 16, f
(2) Bruce, ‘'Annals', Vol. I, p. 176 - 77.
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Roe must belong the credit of laying down the policy
which the Englishmen in Indie pursued at least during
the formative period of the building up of their trade,
'Let this be received as a rule', said Roe, 'that if
&ou will profit, seek it at sea and in Quietrtrading,
for without controversy it is an error to seek
garrisons and land wars in India ! (1)

For nearly half a century,”these wise words of
Sir Thomas Roe formed the guiding principle of the
English Company in India, and particularly in Bengal,
where they had to enter far into the interior to secure
commodities for trade. Instead of seeking to gain
their ends by force, they'preferred to rely on
concessions which they could win by fair dealing and
good will or by the judicious bribing of officials.

On 2 February 1634, the English obtained a farman
from Sheh Jahen permitting them to bring their ships into
Bengal as far as Pipli in Balasore. Other concessions
soon followed. The most important of these was the
nishan or sealed permit granted, in 1651, by Prince
Shuja, the Governor of Bengal, by which the English were
permitied to have freedom of trade in Bengal without any
customsduties and without any other reétrictions in

(1) Foster, 'Embassy of Sir Thomas Roe',
L, Paxxxiv.
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return for an annual payment of Rs 3,000 only (1).

 Another nishan, grented in 1656, declared that
'ﬁhe factory of the English Company be no more troubled
iith demaﬁds of custoums for goods imported or exported
either by land or water, nor that their goods be forced
from them at under-rates in any places of government by
which they shall pass or repass up and down the country;
but that they buy and sell freely, and without
impediment neither let any molestation be given them
about anchorage, as formerly has been; also wherever
they have order to build factories or warehouses in any
parts of these kingdoms, that they be not hindered but
forwarded' (2).

T s G — —— - — _— _—— —— —— - —— - — ———— — —————~ —, - —— - - — —— S G - —— —— -

(1) Bruce, 'Annals', Vol. I, pp. 46% - 64,
The nishan was, however, lost by Waldegrave,
the chief of the Balasore factory, on his
land journey to Madras in 1653-54k., Vide-Foster
English Factories 1655-60, p. 110. See also
Foster's article in the 'Indian Antiquary'vol, XL,
1911, ~PP- 21"7 e 570

(2) 'Home Miscellaneous Series', Vol,629, Menuscript
Collection of Charters and Treaties, pp. 5-8. For
a recent translation of the nishan made in Calcutta,
see Foster 'English Factories, 1655-60', p.111.
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The departure of Shuja from Bengal in 1657 to
contest the imperial throne introduced a period of
uncertainty in the Government, His successors did not
regard the nishan &s binding on them. In England, at
this time, the East India Company began to grow in
strength., The restoration of the Stuarts, in 1660,
ushered in a period of active royal support for the
Company. Charles II, by his Letters Patent of 3 April
1661, empowered thé Company to 'erect fortifications
within their limits' (4). The forward policy of having
fortified settlements in India, henceforth inaugurated
by the Company, had its justification in the uncertain
political conditions of the Moghul Empire under
Aurangzib. The Emperor was embroiled, soon after 1660,
in wafs in north-eastern India and in wars with the
Mafathas and Rajputs and the Deccan states, The yéars
from 1661 were a period of growing anxiety and danger
for the East India Company ultimately culminating in
the war with the Moghuls in Eastern and Western India
from 1686 to 1690. ’

The trouble first started in Bengal. liir Jumla,
the imperial general, who held the viceroyalty of Bengal
from 1660 to 1663, carried on extensive private trade on

(1) Bruce, 'Ammals', Vol. I, pp. 556 - 58.
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his own account and frequently availed himgelf of the
services of the English and their ships to despatch
his articles to Persia. He also invested large sums
with the English on business transactions. He took
exception to the conduct of the English factors at
Hugli, who had seized a country vessel of the Mir 'as
a security for the recovery of their debts'. It was
only on the restoration of the boat and thé apblogy of
the English Agent, Trevisa, that the English weré
allowed to continue in Bengal. (1).

The dispute with Mir Jumla marked the begimning
of a new period in the.history of the East India Company.
The civil war, at the time of Aurangzib's .accession,
and the lack of cenﬁral control over thé provinces had
forced the English to consider how they could protect
themselves and their trade irrespective of the f a'vour
of local officials.

Events which were taking place in other parts
of India led Gerald Aungier, who became President at
Surat and Governor of Bombay in 1669, to recommend a
'severe and vigorous' policy to ensure the stability
of the trade of the Company. '' Justice and necessity

(1) Bruce, 'Annals', Vol. I, pp. 560 - 61,
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of your estate now require,'' he wrote in the course
of a lengthy and striking despatch to the Directors
in 1677, ''that in violent distempers, violent cures
are only éﬁccessful; that the times now require you
t0o manage your general commerce with your sword in
your hands'' (1).

The édvice of Aungier fell on willing ears.
The Company, under the guidance of Sir Josia Child,
who after serving seven years as a Director became
the Governor in 1681 and continued to dominate the
policy from London until his death in 1699, decided
t0 pursue a bold and constructive line of action in
India. It was in pursuance of this policy that the
President and Council of Fort St.George were instructed,
in 1687, to establish such a policy of civil and military
power and create and secure such a large revenue as
might lead to ''the foundation"gf a large, well
grounded , sure English dominion in Indda for all time
to come'' (2). |

(1) India Office, 'Original Correspondence with
Collateral Documents,' Vol. 37, No.4228, 7. 8.

(2) India Office Records, Letter Book No.8,
Desiggch to Fort St.George, 12 December 1§87,
Pe 4 _ :
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Henceforth there was a definite departure from
the policy of peaceful trade as laid down by Sir Thomas
Roe. In Bengal, in 1672 and again in 1678, the nishan

of Shah Shuja was renewed by Shaista Khan, the Governor
of the province, with the sanction of the Emperor. In
1680, the Emperor himself issued a farman, the wording
of which was interpreted differently by the officials

of the Company and of the Government. While the factors
of the Company held that the farman had relieved them
of the 3% per cent duties 'on all their goods on

account of custom or poll ﬁoney' in Bengal, the local
officials of the Government deménded payment on this
account. (1)

The differences between the Indian officials
and the Company's factorsy led to frequent deadlock in
the Company's tfade in Bengal. The latter were
de termined fo put the pblicy.of force in operation
and to secure fortified military settlements near the
mouth of the Ganges to ensure the movement of their
trade, They received active encourasgement in their
forward policy from Sir Josia Child and his colleagues
in London. In their instructions to their 'Agent and
Council' in Bengal, the Directors even a dvised them

to attempt a ''surprizall of Dacca itself, if they could
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contrive such a design in a way that the Nawab would
have no foreknowledge of their purpose” They had
confidence in their resourcefulness and the strength

of their éhipping to develop new centres of trade.

If they cquld hold a fortified town in Bengal for four
or five years, the Directors wrote almost prophetically,
it would soon grow into a magﬁ:;ficent city as Madras then
was. They at the same time emphasized the necessity

of devising ways for increasing the revenue locally, for
'a good revenue constantly coming in was the only
foundation of power' (1).

These designé énd activities precipitated a war
with the Moghuls in 1686. In the upshot the English had
to abandon and evacuate Hugli and proceed down the river.
It was in these dark days of 1687 that Job Charnock, the
English Agent, halted at Sutanati on the eastern bank
of the Hugli. But he had to go further down the river
till he could establish himself with his men and guns
at Hijli., In the midst of the operations Job Charnock
was superseded as Agent by Captain Heath. The new
Agent's attempt to seize Chittagong, which he wanted
10 meke an independent base, failed disastrously, and
the English had to retire to Madras. y

(1) Letter Book No.8, 12 December 1687, P 471-72.
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wWhen peace was ultimately concluded with
Aurangzib by the President and Council in Bombay, in
1690, Job Charnock returned to Bengal as the Agent of
the Company and founded the factory at Sutanati on 24
August 1690.

The real reason for the settlement with the
English was that Aurangzib did not want to forego the
income that accrued to his treasury by the trade of
the English Company. Further, he feared that the
English ships might interrupt the trade between India
and the coasts of the Arabian Sea and obstruct the
passage of the pilgrims to Mecca. He, therefore,
accepted the 'repentance of the English' and, on 23
April 1690, wrote to Ibrahim Khan, who succeeded
Shaista Khan as Governor of Bengal, that since the
Englisﬁ had repented of their irregular past proceedings
and petitioned for a 'pardon for their faults' they
should be allowed 'to trade freely in Bengal és
formerly' (1). The imperial orders of 10 February 1691 .
permittea the Company to carry on its trade in Bengal
on an annual payment of Rs 3,000 in lieu of customs(2).

(1) Copy of Aurangzib's letter quoted in Stewart's
'Bengal" PP« H40 = 41, | :

(2) Stewart 'Bengal', p.543%; See also Wilson,
'Early Amnals,'. Vol. I, p. 124.
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The rebellion of Shobha Singh, in 1696, secured
for the Company the permission to fortify Calcutta,
while the purchase of the zamindari of Kalikata,
Sutanati and Govindpur, in 1698, by the East India
Company, ensured it a definite revenue which was
regarded by Sir Josia Child as the 'foundation of
power'. These were followed, in 1700, by the creation,
by the Company, of Fort William as the seat of a
Presidency, independent of liadras, with Sir Charles Eyre
as its first President and Governor and the amalgamation,
in 1702, of the 'old' and 'new' English Compenies under
the style and tiile 6f 'Thé United Company of Merchants
of England Trading to the East Indies' (1).

The union of the two Companies had been
consummated by the awardlof_the Earl of Godolphin in
1708-09.  From this time onward there followed a
progressive development of the East India Company's trade.
Dividends were paid regularly at a rate fluctuating
be tween 5 and 10 per cent. From 5 per cent, in 1708-09,
the dividend rose to 10 per cent, in 1711-12, at which
rate it coﬁtinued till 1722, when it dropped to 8 per cent
in 1743, at which figure it continued till 1755.

The development of the Company's trade is also
evident from the number and tonnage of ships despatched

(1) See Chapter I, p. 6.
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annually to the East. From an annual average of eleven
ships of about 300 tons despatched for the five years
from 1708-09 to 1711-13, the number rose to twenty-one
ships of about 490 tons in the guinquennium from
1735-3%6 to 1759-40. While in 1708-09 out of ten ships
despatched from the United Kingdom, only four were ‘
bound for the 'Coast and Bay', that is, the eastern
coast of India, in 1739-40 o;t of thirty-nine ships
go despatched, nineteen were bound for the eastern
coasts, énd of these nineteen ships no less than nine
were specially earmarked for Bengal (1).

The Union of the two Companies and the
administration of the 'rotation goverunment', from
1702 to 1709, coincided with a turning period in the
history of Bengal. Four years before the final
amalgamation of the two Companies under the award of
1708-09, Murshid Kuli Khan, the Diwan of Bengal,
transferred his headquarters from Dacca to Murshidabad,
which, from 1704, became the centre of gravity in the
financial sdministration of the province. The death of
Aurangzib, in 1707, at once let loose the forces of
disintegration which gradually removed all elements of
cohesion in the Moghul Empire.

(1) Charles Hardy, 'Register of Ships employed in the
service of the United East India Company',published
by the East India House in 1799.
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Section II

The Farman of 1717 and Murshid Kuli Khan

The position of the English in Bengal at the
time of Aurangzib's death was ill defined. Though
they had got the zamindari rights and a fortifiéd
settlement in Calcutta, they found that the provisions
of the farmans they had hitherto obtained hardly gave
them any security and stability to their trade. The
provincial authorities, in fact, ignored the farmans

- on various grounds (1).

Murshid Kuli Khan, as Diwan and later as
Subahdar of DBengal, was held in high esteem by the
Moghul Emperors, mainly because of his efficient
collection of revenues and the timely despatch of the
same to Delhi. A shrewd financier, Murshid Kuli Khan
was ' sensible that the prospefity of Bengal and the
increase of the revenues depended upon its advantageous
commerce, particularly that carried by the ships from

s/ Europe.'' But while he ' @6 : showed great indulgénce to
merchants of every description, he was Jealous of the
growing power of the Europeans in Bengal'' (2).

(1; Consultations, 22 October 1708; 27 November 1708,
(2) Salimulla, 'Tarikhi-Bangla', translated by Gladwin
L1788) 5.« s 814
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Naturally, the English were anxious to secure
one consolidated farman ensuring the free movement of
their trade over the whole country. The fortified
settlements at Bombay , Madras and Calcutta had already
added to their physical strength. A consolidated
farman issued by the Emperor ensuring their commercial
privileges would clothe them with legal and moral
Justification to assert their rights, whenever they
were violated by the provincial authprities. Their
position was boldly and clearly stated by Thomas Pitt,
President and Governor of Fort St.George, in 1708. In
a letter to Zeaudy Khan (Ziyau-d din Khen), Lord High
Steward of Shah Alam's Household, he urged on the
necessity of having 6ne document which would remove
the impediments in the way of the trade of the Company
and ensure - . it better facilities.
'As we want the Phirmaund to be general', wrote Pitt,
o must let you know how matéers stand in Benéal and Suratt)
'In Bengal we have the King's Phirmaund and
Prince's Nishaun with several Nabob's Perwannas for being
cuatom free in the Klngdom of Bengall Behar and Orixa
upon paying three thousand rupees per annum att Hugly
into the King's treasury, and for our settlement at

Calcutta, where we desire His Majesty would be pleased




(34)

to grant us leave to erect a lMint and to coin Rupees
and Mores (Muhars) with Royal Spamp according to true
matt. and weight of those coined in his Royal Mint at
Rajamall which conveniency would very much contribute
to the increase of that trade,'
Pitt also spoke about tﬁe obstructions put
on the trade of the English at Patna, Dacca, Rajmahal,
Malda and Kasimbazar and expressed the hope that a way
might be found in a farman for the removal of their
difficulties in future, which would 'lend greatly to
the honour of the King and the augmentation of the
riches of his country.' (1).
In spite of repfesentations and protests of

the English no concerted move could be made till 1713
when the Calcutta Council were determined to send an
embassy and presents to the new Emperor Farrukhsiyar
who, as a Prince, had been friendly with the English
in Bengal. The Directors of the Company approved of
the proposal made by the Council of Fort William and
the Presidencies of lMadras and Bombay were advised to
co-operate with the lead given by Bengal. The good will
of Farrukhsiyar was further demonétrated by his orders
to the local Governors, in response to the reguest of

the Company, to help the passage of the emnbassy and of the

R —— T —— — ————— - ————— — -~ - —— - — - — ]~ - ———

(1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol, &9, pp. 183 - 85,
| Letter dated 5 January 1708,
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presents through their respective territories. Murshid
Kuli Khan, in Bengal, was meanwhile forbidden to
interfere with the English trade which was to continue
on existing terms. (1).

The embassy was led by John Surman, a young
factor of Calcutta, with Khwaja. Sarhaud, a friendly
Armenian, and Edward Stephenson, as his colleagues.
Hugh Barker was the secretary of the embassy. They
carried with them costly presents worth about £30,000
and were warmly received at Delhi in July, 1715.

Fortune fawured the English. The medical skill
of Williem Hamilton, the surgeon of the embassy, cured
the Emperor of a dangerous malady and helped to create
a friendly atmosphere., The bureaucratic formalities
of the Moghul government delayed the proceedings for
some time. The approval of the Emperor signifying his
assent to the petitions, made on behalf of the Company,
was ultimately obtained on 30 December 1716,

In three separate farmans addressed to the
Governors of Bengal, Hydersbad and Ahmedabad, the various
grants and privileges conferred on the East India Company
were recorded and ordered to be complied with. The
Persian versions of the farmans and their translations
in English appear side by side in Surman's Diary

(1) Consultations, 4 January 1714,
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preserved in the India Office records (1). For Bengal
the chief provisions of Farrukhsiyar's farmen were :-

1. That duty-free trade was to continue
on a yearly payment of a pescash or
tribute of Rs 3000 to the royal
excheguer at Hugli.

2. That the rentings of Calcutta, Sutanati
and Govindpur in the pargana of
Amnirabadgwere confirmed for an annual
payment of Rs 1195-6-0 and those of
thirty-eight new villages adjoining the
aforesaid towns were conferred for a
yearly rent of Rs 8121-8-0 to be paid
‘to the Moghul Government. These villages
were to be purchased from the respective
owners with the permission of the Diwan
Subah.

3, That in case the goods bélonging to the
English were stolen, attempt should be made
to find out and return the same to the
owners and the thief should be punished.

4k, That the Madras rupees, provided they
were as good as those coined at Surat, should

pass in Bengal without discount.

(1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vols. 69 - 71.
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h. That the original sanads need not be
demanded of and shown by the English.
A copy under the Kazi's seal would be
a sufficient substitute for the original,
6. That all persons whether European or
native, who might be indebted or
accountable to the Company should be
delivered up to the Chief of the factory.

8. That the English ships wrecked or driven

ashore by stormé should not be seized by
the officers of the Government but that
every assistance should be given to the
English in all such cases (1).

Tn addition to the above, certain other
privileges were granted to the English by the hasb -
ul - hikm or imperial commands mentioned at the back
of the farman. The more important of them were :-

(1.) That a dastak (or permit) given by
the chief of the factory should exempt
the goods from being stopped or examined
by the officers of the Government,

(2.) That the Bengal Government should afford
facilities for the coining of the Company's

~ gold and silver in the mint at Murshidabad

-————-——-———————_——-—-------——-——-———-—————_—-—_—_——-——————-

(1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol.69, pp. 130 = 31.
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in the season of coining other merchants'

money, if it was not against the King's

interest (1).

Rightly was the great farman issued by

- Parrukhsiyar regarded as the Magna Carta of the English
trade in India. The grant of the farman was by far the
most important event in the history of the East India
Company in the eighteenth century prior to the battle
of Plassey. It recognised all the privileges hitherto
obtainéd by the English since the reign of Shah Jahan,
It also contained new provisions. ''That all goods

and necessaries which their factors of the Subahships,
ports and round about bring or carry away either by
land or warer, know they are custom free that they- 3
b buy'or sell at their pleasure'' (2). These words gave
unqualified rights of trade to the English in Bengal.
No other merchants, Indian or foreign, enjoyed the

same privileges. Freedom of the Company's servants
from molestation, searches and oppressions, and the
authority which the Company obtained over the run

away debtors virtually conferred on them extra -
territorial privileges and correspondingly affected

the sovereignty of the Moghul rulers in Bengal.

o — — S T G G W W —— —————————————————————————-—-—-———_——-—————

1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol.63%0,No.%1 and No.12.
Iden, Vol. 69, De130.
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Though many of its provisions were not long
observed, the farman undoubtedly opened the way for
the establishment of the commercial and political
suprémacy of the English in India. It enabled them
not merely to out-distance their European competitors
in commercial enterprise in India but also to defy
the authority of the Government of the country whose
prosperity began to be increasingly dependent on the
trade of the Company and their servants. Forty years
later, the vindication of the terms of the farman
formed one of the groundsby which Clive justified his
march against Siraj-ud-damla.

The news of the grant of the farman created
great rejoicing among the English in Bengal, but just
as it had been difficult to obtain the farman, so it
was difficult to get it observed.

Murshid Kuli Khen, the Subahdar of Bengal,
could hardly look upon the farman with complaisance,
but he did not openly violate its terms. Some of them
were, in fact instantaneously complied with. The

authority of the dastaké*issued by the President of the

- G G . G S S G G —— — G —-——— - - - —— — —— " —— -~ — — — ——— — —— T a— - - ——— ————

Dastak : A passport, a permit. In early days of
the British government, a document authorising
free transit of certain goods, and their exemption
from custom dues, in favour of English traders.
Vide, Wilsom, 'Glossary', p. 128,
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Company was recognised and in practice observed (1).
This greatly facilitated the Company's trade which
was no longer liaeble to be stopped by the officers
of the Government. Difficultiegfg}ose regarding

the goods to which the dastaks were applicable., Since
the farmam did not define the articles of trade, the
English held that the privileges would extend to all
kinds of commodities., The Nawab, on the other hand,
firmly maintained that the dastaks were intended to
cover only such goods as were imported or purchased
for export by the sea.

The sale of dastaks to Indian merchants was an
abuse extensively practised. In spite of the efforts
of the Company to guard ageainst possible abuses, the
use and sbuse of dastaks continued to give rise to
trouble throughout the period (2).

The article which permitted the English to
purchase thirty-eight additional villages was frustrated
by the Nawab. These riparian villages were valued by
the English because of their proximity to Calcutta.
They were situated on both sides of the Hugli

§1g Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol.628, pp.263-6k.
Consultations, 25 lay 172@, See Chapter ; Do 18~
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extending from Baranagar on the north, to Kidderpore
on the south, on the east bank of the river,6and over
a similar distance on its opposite bank. They had
become the abode of merchants, banians (agents),
brokers and sundry other traders dependent on the
English, The imperial mandate directing the Diwan
Subah to permit the English to purchase the villages
from their respective owners was disregarded by the
Nawab (1). He even prevailed over the zamindars
not to sell these villages to the English.

Unable to get the possession of the villages
by direct methods, the English took recourse to
ijndirect tactics. Most of these villages were purchased
by the Company's brokers and others dependent on them.
A system of guestionable and spurious transfer of
ownership of these villages resulted in confusion and
the unsettling of their revenues between 1717 and 1757,
despite the revised settlement of the revenue of Bengal
by Murshid Kuli Khan in 1722 (2). The matter was not
finally settled until the treaties negotiated by Clive
with Siraj-ud-danla and Mir Jafar.

21 Consultations, 30 July 1717.
The Census of India Repext, 1901,
Vol. VII, Part I, p.2k.
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The use of the mint at Murshidabad was also
pronptly denied to the English on the ground that the
Nawab's chief lutasaddi (subordinate officer), who
operated it, was dangerously ill and nothing could be
determined'in this regard till he recovered or was
dead (1). An attempt to gain this and certain other
privileges,in 1724, even on the offer of paying
Rs 40,000 to the Nawab met with little success. (2)

- The real opposition to the use of the mint
came from Fatehchand, the foremost banker of Bengal,
and the holder of the honour and title of Jagat-Seth.
He counteracted successfully all efforts of the English
to win over the Nawab to the execution of this
impOrtant measure.

When the Surman embassy was in Delhi, the
English in Bengal were harbouring fond hopes of getting
the imperial sanction and the Nawab's permission to use
the Murshidabad mint in terms of their petition (3).

To facilitate the coining of money at the mint, they

were thinking of building a new house near the mint.

S G S T oy G G G W — 0 D e . G- S T G W —— - —— — - — W - - W - o — wlh = —————— —— - —

2) Idenm, 22 June 172k4.

1) Consultations, 18 July and 30 July 1717.
%) Idem, 10 November, 1715.
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They had also agreed to pay Rs 25,000 to the Nawab
and his officers for a 'verbal order to use the
mint' (1). Even before the arrival of the farman
in Bengal, the English were anxious t0 work the

mint with the small quantity of silver then available
at Kasimbazar, so that they might gain some sort of
preliminary experience of its working before greaier
quantities of bullion were used for the purpose (2).
In view of the prospect of being able to coin money
at Murshidabad, tﬁenty chests of treasure were sent
from Calcutta to Kasimbazar in July 1717 (3).

On the arrival of the treasure at Murshidabad
the English found themselves outwitted. They were
not allowed the use of the mint on the plea that the
Mint Mutasaddi was ill. When later on, the farman
and the relevant has-bul-hukms were shown to Murshid
Kuli Khan, he positively declared that the English
could not have the use of the mint (4).

It soon appeared that Fatehchand was definitely
opposed to the English having the benefit of this
valuable concession, His enormous wealth enabled him

1 Consultations, 16 April 1716,

2 idem 18 June 1716,
2 idem Teaaty 1M,
idem 18 July 1717.
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to purchase the bullion, imported by the English

to pay for their exports from the country, and to
dictate its price. He supplied the bullion to the
mint for coinage. He controlled the batha or
discount rate which had to be paid for the use of

the Bengal siccas as also for the Madras rupeeé or
other types of rupees imported from outside the
province. His income from bathka alone, in the
estimate of Luke Serafton, amounted to seven or eight
lakhs a year, the rate of the batka being regulated
by him daily according to the sums he had to pay or
receive (1). The English, on the other hand, valued
the right of using the lurshidabad mint as it would
enable them to make a 1ot of saving on the batita and
ensure them a regular supply of curreancy to pay for
their purchases,

In Septemwer 1721, the Council in Calcutita were
informed by the English factors at Kasimbazar that
while 'Fatehchand is so great with the Nawab, they can
have no hopes of that grant, he alone having the sole
use of the mint, nor dare any other shroff or merchant
buy or coin a rupee's worth of silver'(2).

P ———————— T R R R etk bt bkt

(1) Scrafton's Letter to Clive, dated 17 December 1
Vide, Qeme Papers India,’XVIII. 137
(2) Consultations, 26 August 1721; 9 November 1721,
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Both Murshid Kuli Khan, the Subahdar and
Fatehchand, the Government bénker, were opposed to
the idea of the English excercising their right
regarding the mint, so that they came to despair of
using the mint for the purposes specified in the
farman duringlthe life time of Murshid Kuli Khan (1).
His successor, Shuja-ud-din, was no less zealous in
upholding the position and prestige of PFatehchand,
who exercised a greater influence over the new Nawab
and his actions than any other nobleman in Bengal.

One effect of the grant of the farman was the
new stimulus it gave to the trade of the Company.
The Company's investment in Bengel, which,in 1717
stood at £278,593, rose to £363,979 in 1729 (2).

Murshid Kuli Khan himself issued several
parwanas or orders to facilitate the trade of the
English merchants on the basis of dastaks (3). The
Patna factory which had to be closed in 1715 was
re-opened in 1718. The newly appointed factors at

§1; Consultations, 25 July 1726, and 14 August 1727.
2

(%) Home Miscellaneous Series, V0l.628 - pp.263% - 64;
Vol.629, pp. 181 - 83 and 185 - 87.

Bengal General Letter, 30 October 1717,Letter Book No.16

- idem 28 Nov. 1729,Letter Book No.21

s
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Patna were received with great civility by the local
Nawab, who gave them a public audience and declared
that the English were not merely forgiven the usual
yearly peshkash or tax but they might buy and sell
and go on with their business without the least
molestation.

Difficulty soon arose regarding the articles
which were covered by the farman. The more greedy
and unscrupulous officers of the Government took full
advantage of the confusion that resulted from the
vagueness of the farman on this point. The attempt
of the English merchants to carry on unauthorised
trade in goods not permitted under the farman often
led to estrangement of relations between the Company
and the Government., The Company tried to purchase
the goodwill of the Subahdar, his deputies, and the
localyofficials by offering them rich presents on
- their assumption of office and on other special
occasions. Presents were also given spontaneously
if the Company's servants were spared obstruction in
their trade for a considerablé time. The faudjar of
Hugli was, in fact, a frequent recipient of such
presents for his good offices (1).

(1) Consultations, 11 Sept. & 2 Oct.1727, 4 Jan.1732;
6 Nov. 1732; 25 Oct. 1732, ete.
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The breach of privilege by the Company was
often méde a ground for the estrangement of relations
petween the English and the Government. One form of
pressure 1o realise money from the Company was to .
confine its officers, particularly its vakil (attorney
at the darbar) on the plea of the breach of privilege
and such other pretexts. These officers would not be
released by the Government until money payment was
received (1).

A case in point was the confinement of the
vekil of the English at Murshidabad,in 1726,0n the
ground that Rs 44,000 was due from the English on
account of the Calcutta 'towns' (2). The English
repudiated the demand and wererdétermined not to give
the additional rent demanded of them lest it should
encoursge similar demands in future (3). When the
news reached the Council in Calcutta that the vakil
was being whipped by Abdul Rehim, the Nawab's steward,
who was the chief instigator of the plot and who had
put under arrest several of the English gumastas

(clerks collecting revenue, making purchases, etc) at

2 idem 28 November 1726 and 12 December 1726.

1) Consultations, 30 August 1722.
3 idem 15 February 1727.
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Murshidabad and placed peons on the Company's factory
house at Kasimbazar, and that orders had gone out to
apprehend all the English gumastas at Malda and
several asurangs (centres for wholesale trade), they
were surprised that 'Jafar Khan, the Nawab, should
permit his officers to act in this manner when we
have been guilty of no misdemeanour or given any
occasion for this unaccountable treatment.' (1).

The Engl ish decided to represent ¢heir
grievances through the faujdar of Hugli and considered
themselves powerful enough to hold out the threat
that if the vakil was not set at liberty, they 'would
not permit any boats and vessels belonging to the
Moors to pass up and down the river!(2). They issued
orders that no loors' ships, vessels or boats were to
be allowed to pass by the Fort‘and adopted measures
for the enlistment of additional forces from among the
'Europeans, Portuguese and others as quickly as possible!”
(3).

While the English made arrangements to strengthen

their armed forces, they at the same time did not

idem idem

é1 Consultations, = 13 February 1727.
idem ' idem
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neglect other means of getting over the difficulty.
Instructions were issued to Kasimbazar to 'send
over a party of men and endeavour by some stratagem
or otperf%ett the vakil released'. Their vakil at
Hugli who was sent to make speciél representations
to the Nawab was advised to 'give the King's duhoy'
(exclamation calling for mercy or redress) in the
most public manner'. The English also made
representations to the Nawab through the faujdar

of Hugli (1).

The situation was so tense that the English
Council in Calcutta considered it unwise to dispatch
to Kasimbazar the twenty chests of treasure which
had been got ready for that factory (2). The Nawab,
in his turn, questioned the wisdom of Fatehchand,
who was about to send two lakhs of rupees to Hugli,
and wondered 'if he was not mad to venture such
a large sum when the English were plundering boats

and ships on the rivefij).

2 idem 16 February 1727.

§1 Consultations, 13 February 1727.
3 idem 27 February 1727.
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To play off the English, the Nawab went to
the extent of inviting the Ostend merchants to his
Court (15. The English considered this to be a
mere pretence to extort further sums from them.

They made their position clear to Fatehchand whp

was acting as an intermediary. They maintained

that 'as long as their servants were under
confinement, they could not hearken to any proposals,
but on having their freedom in an honourable way

and the demands on the towns entirely laid agide
they would readily consent to making the Nawab a
handsome present, and as soon as they were advised
of their releasement they would permit the boats 10
pass and repass the river'(2).

The unfortunate vakil and his fellow prisoners
continued to be maltreated, despite the supply of
small sums from Kasimbazar which were intended to
' procure them liberty to eat and save their back
for a day or two' (3). The question of releasing
them by stratagem was considered to be not worth the

trial, as they were kept in the Nawab's cutcherry(or

idem idem

1 Consultations, 27 February 1/727.
idem idem
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court house for the transaction of public business),
which was within the courtyard of the house (1).

Pressure was soon put on the Nawab from:
another quarter. The country merchants became
alarmed at the attitude publicly adopted by the
English 'not to submit to the payment of a rupee
more thanlusual for the annual rent of Calcutta &
Towns and would sooner decline trading and ruin the
country' (2). The nakhudas (captains) of the Moors'
ships addressed the Nawab with a complaint that the
action of the English would mean the ruin of the
trade of the country and thg merchants would sustain
enormous losses (3).

Fatehchand, who acted as the intermediary,
at last succeeded in bringing about better relations.
He threw out a hint to the English that if they
agreed to pay Rs 30,000, a parwana might be obtained
to prevent any similar demand in future. Since the
cessation of all activities would be particularly
detrimental to the ensuing year's investment, the

English at Kasimbazar were in favour of a settlement.
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idem idem

1 Consultations, 27 February 1727.
idem iden
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The Calcutta Council, accordingly, empowered
Edward Stephenson, chief of the Council at
Kasimbazar, to offer the Nawab fifteen or twenty
thousand rupees in consideration that the Nawab
would be pleased to allow them to 're-settle the
factory at Malda, build the house at Dacca and
finish the house at Hugli.' The English were
unwilling to spend money unless they had some
benefit in return. The Council in Calcutta declared
that instead of 'tamely and easily complying with
every yinjust and unreasonable demand,' they would
rather put a stop to their investment and all other
business. (1)

The intervention of Fatehchand succeeded in
bringing about a settlement. The vakil and other
prisoners were released., The English paid to the
Nawab Rs 20,000 for a parwana which was received in
Calcutta on 10 June 1727, confirming the'Sabik’or
»former grants and forbidding any like demands about
the towns for the future.' (2)

Twenty days later, on 30 June 1727, Murshid

- —————— T — - — - —— G ——— - ——— - — —— - — — —_——————— o ————— —— -

(1) Consultations, 15 March 1727.
idem 12 June 1727.
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%
Kuli Khan died. (%) The death of the Nawab created
some misgiving in the mind of the Calcutta Council
regarding the security of their farman, but the
Kasimbazar factory assured them that they would meake
the best use of 'the change of Government' and that
they were in hopes of procuring from his successor
a 'confirmation of Farukhsiyar's farman as well as
some other favours (2).

Within a month of Murshid Kuli Khan's death
the English at Kasimbazar obtained a confirmation
of the farman and the grant of the 'Calcutta towns'
under Sarfaraj Khan's seal on payument of Rs 5,000
and requested the Calcutta Council for an additional
sum of money'fbf having some facilities at Hugli and
Dacca and to re-settle the Malda factory. The Council
permitted the factors at Kasimbazar o use up to
Rs 10,000 for the purpose but warned them that as it
was uncertain whether Shuja Khan, the son-in-law,

(1) Consultations, 3 July 1727.

% The year of Murshid Kuli Khan's death was wrongly
recorded by Stewar& as 1725. -The following
statement in the Bengal Public Consultations of 3
July 1727 leaves no doubt as to the correct date
of Murshid Kuli Khan's death:- ''Yesterday, we
received a letter from Edward Stephenson, Esq.,
Chief & Council of Cossimbazar, dated the 50th
Ulto, advising of the Nabob's death.''

(2) Consultations, 17 July 1727.
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or Sarfaraj Khan, the grandson, of the old Nawab,
would be appointed Subahdar, any payment on this
account should be made on the confirmation of the
new Nawab from the Delhi Court (1).

Murshid Kuli Khan's plan of leaving the
succession of the Subahsﬁip to his grandson, Sarfaraj
Khan, did not materialise, but there was little
change of relations between the English and the
darbar of Murshidabad after his death.

The administration of Murshid Kuli Khan as
Subahdar of Bengal forme: an important chapter in
the history of the province. He supplied an efficient
and orderly government in Bengal and kept it formally
under the empire at a time when disintegration and
disruption were the order of the day. He settled the
land revenue of the province and, according to the
Fifth Report (1812), increased the annual revenue by
about twelve lakhs of rupees or 133 per cent of the
previous settlement made sixty-four years ago by
Prince Shuja. The settlement of the revenue made by
him was, in fact, the last settlement on land based
on the capacity of the soil prior to the British rule(2).

(1) Consultations, 31 July, 1727.
(2) Ascoli, 'Early Revenue History of Bengal and
the Fifth Report, 1812', pp.25-26.
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His strong and masterful personality was feared and
respected. He gave Bengal a tolerably peaceful
adninistration for alnost a guarter of a century.
Owing allegiance to the Moghul throne at Delhi,
Murshid Kuli Khan was not always respectful of the
edicts.and farmans that came from the imperial capital.
Some of the most important provisions of Farukhsiyar's
ferman of 1717, for example, the permission granted
to the English to purchase the thirty-eight villages
near Calcutta and the use of the Murshidabad mint on
certain specified days, could not be effective because
of his tacit; if not active, opposition., ©Shrewd as
the Nawab was, he must have realised that the
acknowledgement of these concessions and privileges
affecting the economy of the province would make the
foreigners too strong in the country? But his
successful defiance of the imperial farman proved, if
proof was necessary, the fatal weakness of the lMoghul

administrative machinery in the eighteenth century.

% It is unfortunate that Dr.Balkrishna, in his article
entitled ''whe Magna Charta and After'' published in the
Proceedings of the Indian Historical Records Commission,
1925, should have confounded lurshid Kuli Khan,generally
referred to as Jafar Khan in contemporary English records,
with Mir Jafar Khan, and made him play a role, in 1724,

of surrendenfing sovereign rights to the English which
Mir Jafar did thirty-three years later.
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Section III

The working of the Farman, 1727-40.

In September, 1727, Shuja-ud-daula or Shuja-ud-din
Khan, described in contemporary English records as
Suja Cawn, became the acknowledged Subahdar of Bengal
with confirmation from the imperial court of Delhi.
While the guestion of making an adequate present to
him was the subject of correspondence between Calcutta
and Kasimbazar, the English at Patna succeeded in
procuring a hasb-ul-hukm or imperial command under the
seal of the Vazir of the Emperor Muhammad Shah
confirming the grants made for Bengal by Farrukhsiyar's
farman. (1) | |

Shuja Khan's.subahship‘could not have begun
under better auspices. A revenue system with a growing
surplus, a rich treasury, a prosperous commerce and an
administrative machinery and personnel raised to a high
standard of efficiency by Murshid Kuli Khan - these
were some of the assets which Shuja Khan obtained on
his assumption of office., Edward Stephenson, the chief
of the English factory at Kasimbazar, accompanied by
one of his colleagues visited the Nawab with a handsome

(1) Consultations, 21 August 1727, and
9 October 1727.



(54)

present which apparently pleased him. As a mark
of his favour the Nawab bestowed on the English
merchants Seerpaws (dress of honour) and gave valuable
shawls (wrappers with embroiderjes)to their Indian
broker and vaekil. He gave them repeated assurances
of his favour and-ehcouraged them 'to go on with
their business with all cheerfulness' (1),

‘Easy going and ostentatious by nature, Shuja
Khan was rather fortunate in having & number of men
of outstanding ability on whom he could depend for
the administration of the province., Fatehchand, with
his experience as a banker, controlled and guided the
system of currency,Alamchand, the Deputy Diwan (2),
* managed .the revenue administration, Ali-Wardi Khan,
the strong man, could be relied on to guard and
administer the frontiers, while Haji Ahmed, the broker
of Aliwardi, played the role of an elder statesman,
conducting delicate negotiations and holding the
balance between the groups.

-y o - — - — S S —— - — — G G - —— - — - - — ——— ———-—

§1 Consultations. 18 September 1727.
The Nawab's son Sarfaraj Khan was the
nominal Diwan.
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In his relations with the Europeans, Shuja Khan
followed in the footsteps of his predecessor, He
did not let slip an opportunity to demand money of
them on the allegation that they had abused their
privileges. All the European settlers, the English,
the Dutch, the French and the Ostenders, were at one
time or other taken by him to task. The growing
importance of the English in Bengal naturally brought
them in closer contact with the Nawab. But during
the twelve years of his Subahship in Bengal (1727-39),
Shuja Khan did not go one inch further than Murshid
Kuli Khan in the execution of the provisions of the
farman of 1717 The English, in their turn, always
claimed the protection of the farman, even though they
often exceeded its provisions and came into conflict
with the darbar. Both sides, however, appeared to
have accepted the position of charging and counter
charging each other without breaking permanently. One
weapon which the English used effectively against the
Government was the threat to block the river., This
usually had a sobering effect on the Nawab.

Soon after Shuja Khan's assuuption of office

as Subahdar of Bengal, the relations between the
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Government and the English Company became embittered
over the guestion of trade in salt, a commodity,

the sale and taxing of which has ever since played a
prominent part in the history of India.

The boats of some English merchants proceedirg
to Patna were seized oy the officers of the Government,
and a huge quantity of salt found therein was unloaded
by them at Bhagalpur. On representation. being made
by the English at Murshidabad to permit them to regain
possession of the salt, the Government not merely
fefused the request, but demanded of them not to trade
in salt in future. The Government held that no |
disinterested person could think that the farman gave
the English the right to trade in all goods customs
free, except in exports and imports. Kven this
concession, they emphasized, had placed the English in
a position of advantage, which was not enjoyed by any other
group of Europeans, not even by the lMohommedans
themselvese. The Government further alleged that the
trade of the English had of late increased so much
and they dealt in so many more commodities than in the
past that the foreign trade of native merchants had very

much decayed; and unless an effective stop was put to
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their encroachements on inland trade, they would
soon undersell all others, engross the whole trade
of the province and thereby deprive vast numbers of
the inhabitants of the means of livelihood. The
English merchants of Kasimbazar feared that the
dispute would not be settled without expense and
giving of an obligation (1).

As a precaution for the future, the English
Council in Calcutta decided that 'no person or
persons whatsoever do directly or indirectly engage
themselves in sending any Bengal salt with the Patna
fleet for the future under penalty of having all
such salt confiscated' (2).

This did not solve the issue at stake. The
English feared that the order for the release of the
salt could not be obtained for anything less than
Rs 10,000, The position was further complicated by
the attempt of the Government to define the
implication of the words, 'Bearen' and 'Bibberum' as
used in the farman. Whilé'the Governmént allowed
the English to trade customsfree in all such goods
as were brought into or carried out of the country,

1 Consultations, 9 October 1727
idem idem
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they did not admit the right of inland trade exercised
by the English in such merchandize as were produced in
the country. The Government insisted not merely on the
payment by the English of a penalty for breaches made
by them in the past, but also on an undertaking being
inland

given by them not to trade/in that or any other

commodity produced in the country in future (1),

The Council in Calcutta considered that not merely

was the sum demanded too high since it was five times
more than the customs would amount to on the salt but
that their acquiscence in this affair would become a
precedent for every trifling occasion. They justified

~ their stand on the ground that they had done nothing
contrary to the royal farman granted by Farrukhsiyar and
"' gince confirmed by his present Majesty King Muhammad
Shah'' (2).

In reply to a petition presented by the English,
the Nawab stated, with some force, that he was greatly
surprised to find that the English entertained any such
unreasonable thought that the farman gave them an
unbounded privilege to trade in anything they had a mind
to, and with ' some warmth'' he added that as he would

the English
not deny/the privilege allowed them (which was only,
to trade customs free in what they would import and

213 Consultations, 18 March 1728,
2 Idem, idem,
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and export), so he would not suffer them to extend it
further, in as much as this would be detrimental to
the King's revenues and would be harmful to the natives
who depended for their livelihood on inlend trade (1)

On 9 April 1728, the Council in Calcutta learnt
that the hopes of the Kasimbazar factory of getting
the demend on the salt moderated were entirely at an
end and that the Viceroy had declared positively that
'he would not give 1eéve for the gumastas to go to
Bhagalpur to dispose of the salt 80 unjustly detained
there by the Government (unless) we would comply with
nis unreasonable and exorbitant demand of Rs 10,000'(2).

Apprehending that the compliance with this
demand would be a sure and certain inducement to the
Government to meke further extravagant demands in
future, the Council in Calcutta decided not to yield
but to claim the privileges granted them by the farmen
and confirmed later. Unenimously they resolved to
make a stand against the 'daily growing abuses of
the new Viceroy'.

The Counéil decided to complain to his Imperial
Majesty at Delhi, the Grand Vazir and other officers
of the breach of several royal grants and to seek

§1g Consultations, 1 April 1728.
idem 15 April 1728.
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redress. They also wrote to Edward Stephenson,
Chiefcﬁycgﬁicil at Kasimbazar, 'In case the Gomastahs
have not leave to return to Baggélpore to dispose of
the salt by the 1st May, and that all our inland trade
(without limitation) does not go on withi usual
currency, we are resolved to stop up the river, and
not to suffer any vessells or boads belonging to the
lMoors to pass and repass our Fort'. The Council
believed that strong and retaliatory measures, rather
than tame submission, would help them to vindicate
their position (1).

According to reports received by the English,
the reaction of the darbar, on receipt of the
resolution of the Calcutta Council, was rather mild,
In view of this the English factors at Kasimbazar
were of opinion that were the salt affair accommodated,
the Government, while holding that the farman did not
entitle the English to trade inland in such commodities
as were produced in the country, would not take notice
of their moderate dealings in what had of late been
sent to Patna (excepting salt) and that the adding to
the list of prohibited goods other commodities was
only to induce them to comply the sooner with the
Nawab's demands on that account. (2)

PR ————————————— PP et

é1 Consultations, 15 April 1728.
idem 29 April 1728.
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The Council, however, were soon informed by
the officers of the darbar that the Nawab would not
abate anything of Rs 10,000 demanded on account of
salt and that had not the Nawab been inclined to
favour the English he would not accept so little but
would have put into execution the orders issued earlier
regarding the salt at Bhagalpur. The darbar officers
further warned the English that an attempt to block
the river would much incense the Nawab.

Meanwhile the people appointed by the Nawab
to dispose of the salt at Bhagalpur had sold some
Rs 3,000 worth. The English were informed by some
'influential officers that if the affair was not
speedily settled, the remainder also would be sold,
and once the money was paid into the Nawab's treasury
they would find it very difficult to recover it.
These officers, as friends, advised the English not
to hazard the Nawab's resentment but rather to coumply
with the demand so és to get parwanas for the currency
of their business as usual. The faujdar of Hugli
also offered his mediation and urged on the English
not to precipitate a crisis by acting on their
resolution to block the river. His advice was accepted

by the Engl ish who decided to watch the results of
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nis efforts (1). They also took care to see that no
Bengal salt was sent towards Patna, and in case any
quentity was in danger of being found in the boats
destined for Patna, it was to be thrown into the river
(2).

The English had some satisfaction in the
knowledge that other European traders were faring
no better. The Dutch had their business stopped
in the mint and could regain the liberty to use it
only on payment of Rs 12,000. The Ostend Company also
hed met with a rebuff (3), while the resident of the
French factory at Kasimbazar had been kept in
confinement for some days at Murshidabad and was
later released on giving an obligation for good
behaviour in future (4).

In spite of the efforts made by the English
to cultivate better relations at the darbar by presenting
a handsome horse to Sarfaraj Khan, the son of the
Subshdar and nominal Diwan of the province, they could
not assuage the Nawab who ordered the Indian merchants
not to have any further dealings with the English

1)Consultations, 13 May 1728.

2 idem , 12 August 1528

3 idem ’ 3 June 172

k4 idem i 17 beptember 1728 and 3 October 1728.
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and instructed his officers to stop the transit of
all English goods wherever found. The reason for
this fresh flare up was the alleged issue of dastaks
by the English for goods sold to merchants other than
the inhabitants of Calcutta, by which practice the
King was defrauded of his customs. The English were
held answerable for the deficiency (1).

The relations between the English and the darbar
at Murshidabad became further complicated by the
agreement which the English and the Dutch had entered
into with the Nawab, regarding the Ostenders (2) and
by the failure of Kantu(3), the broker of the English
Company at Kasimbazar, to pay off his ligbilities of
over Rs 200,000 to Fatehchand Jagat-seth, the banker.
Fatehchand made a demand on the English for his claims
on their broker.

The case of Kantu revealed the working. of the
financial transactions of the Company in relation to

§1§ Consultations, 22 May 1729.
2 idem 4 2 June 1750 - ©See Chapter III

Pe :

(3) Kantu, the broker of the Company at Kasimbazar, who
was dismissed in June 1730, died on 2 November 1731.
(Vide : Consultations, 22 June 1730, and 22 November
1731). He should not be confused with Kantu Babu,
the banian of Warren Hastings and founder of the
Raj family of Cossimbazar,
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Fatehchand and the general body of merchants. Kantu,
as the broker of the Company, used to act, on its
behalf, in making advance payments to the merchants
among whom the English invested their money. It was
customary for him to take short term loans, for and
on behalf of the Company, from Fatehchand by issuing
notes. In 1730, the total amount due from him to
Fatghchand on account of such debts was Rs 215,000,
Besides, he was indebted to the merchants for Rs 30,000,
and his 1lisbility to the Company was Rs 155,000, His
total assets which he made over to the Company to meet
all his debts amounted to Rs 272,000 (1). Fatehchand
held that he had lent his money to the Company through
Kantu who acted agits agent (2). He therefore made
the Company responsible for the amount.

Since the system of accounting was not very clear,
Fatehchand sent his gumasta (clerk),Jeebandas, to John
Stackhouse, the English chief at Kasimbazar, to explain
the accounts. He had no doubt that 'since the English
were so well versed in mercantile afféirs they would
see him paid'(3).

idem , 25 May 1730.

31; Consultations, 4 May 1730.
idem , iden.
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The delay in payment led Fatehchand to present
a petition.to the Nawab who ordered Haji Ahmed to 1look
into the affair (1). The Haji advised the English that
'since Fatehchand's estate was esteemed as the King's
ireasure', the matter had to be séttled by all meens SO
as to prevent en open rupture with the Nawab (2).

Kantu was unable to honour the heavy liabilities
which he had to meet., The English examined his accounts
and found that he was indebted to Fatehchand and the
merchants for Rs 245,000 (3) and the balances of the
Company for which he was accountable amounted %o
Rs 133,000, He himself gave an account of notes and
effects for Rs 222,000, The Government held that Kantu
contracted these liabilities to advance money to
merchants, on behalf of the English, to keep their
trade going, and since he had acknowledged the debt,
the English must be answerabple for it (4). Kantu, in
his turn, also tried to throw the burden of liabilities
on the English, particularly on Rdward Stephenson, a

former chief of the Kasimbazar factory (5).

---————.._—----—---_h---——-—-—-————————-—————‘-—--—-—————-

idem idem .

Of this amount Fatehchand's portion was Rs 215,000 ;
Consultations, 25 May 1730.
g#g Consultations, 9 June 1730,
5 idem 20 July 1750.

§1} Consultations, 2 June 1730.
2
>
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The failure of the English to satisfy
Fatehchand so alienated him that he entirely stopped
the sale of the English bullion at Kasimbazar and
Murshidabad and brought about a deadlock in their
trade (1). Though the English tried to improve
their position through the patronage of the Nawab's
son, Sarfaraj Khan, and through Haji Ahmed/;agllgmchand X
the Deputy Diwean, they were told that the Nawab had
such regard for Fatehchand that the matter could never
be settled till the latter was satisfied (2).

The situation became so critical that the
Nawab ordered his army to prevent the English boats
going 1o Patna until his orders were carried out (3).
All business of the English at Kasimbazar was at a
standstill, The English thought that the threat of
their withdraﬁal from Kasimbazar, the centre of inland
trade in Bengal, might have some effect on the Nawab,
On the advice of the Calcutta Council, the English at
Kasimbazar had actually made a move to quit the factory,
when the intervention of some Armenian and Indian
merchants at last brought the parties nearer (4),

T ——————————— — ——— -~ - - — — o — - — —— ——— - T - — - ——— - - — -~ v -

1 Consultations, 10 July, 1730.

2 iden, 15 July, 1730.
E idem, 17 August, 1730.
idem, 25 August, 1730,
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The tengle was partly solved by the decision
of the Calcutta Council to satisfy Fatehchand by
offering him Rs 107,500-4-0, being a payment of eight
annas per rupee on his dues. Kantu was .+ »displaced
by another broker nemed Bara Dutt, a substantial
merchent at Kasimbazar (1). The affair with Fatehchand
was for the time being cleared on payment of Rs 130,000
to him, Fatehchand, in his turn, promised to befriend
the English on all occasions and undertook to procure
them admission to the Nawab and an order for the
resumption of their business on usual terums., (2).
Agreeable to this promise, John Stackhouse and Francis
Russell of the Kasimbazar factory were introduced to
the Nawgb who received them with great civility and
assured them of his favour on all occasions (3).

No sooner had the tangle over the Fatehchand -
Kantu affair been unravelled than trouble began to brew
in several other places. The salt affair continued to
give rise to difficulties at Patna (%), while at Dacca,
Mir Habib, the Deputy Nawab, demanded of the English
Rs. 8,000 on the following accounts, namely, the annual

sum of Rs 2,000 for coining their silver in the mint,

-y —————————-—-————-—-—-—_—-—-—-——_—-_——————-——————————_

1 Consultations, 9 September, 1730.
2 idem, 28 October,  1730.
2 veAidem November, 17;0.

idem, 286 October, 1750.
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Rs 2,000 due on account of the promises made by the
broker last year (which he pesitively denied),Rs 2,000
for the friendsnip of the Dacca Nawab for the current
year, Rs 1,000 for his dastak for the dispatch of the
boats of the English, and near Rs 1,000, being the
difference in price of one thousand mesunds of copper.
The English were not to have the use of the local mint
unless a parwana was obtained from Shuja Khan.

The English cons idered the demands of the Dacca
Nawab unreasonable and expostulated with him, The
only answer of the Deputy Nawab was that the English
dominated the whole trade of the country, and in case
of non-compliance with these demands, they would not
be allowed to trade in Dacca (1). These impositions
being entirely new, the English factors at Dacca sought
direction from Calcutta. The Council at Fort William
adopted a firm but conciliatory attitude and agreed to
the payment of Rs 2,000 for the use of the mint but
were definitely against complying with the whole demand(2).

Fresh troubles soon developed at the Murshidabad
darbar. A party of Englishmen conducting some boats
in the Malda river had a guarrel with a Chauki (3),
killed two of the Cheamki men and wounded a third.

21§ Consultations, 23% September 1731.
idem, 2/ September 1731.
Station of police or of customs, a guard, a watch,
or the post where they are placed. Wilson,
'Glossary', p.106.
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One dead body was brought to Murshidaebad and laid at
the Nawab's door, The Nawab at ogce sent for the chief
vakil of the English and in a violent passion told him
that 'if the English were permitted to act in such a
manner and kill the King's subjects at their pleasure
he could not be easie in his Government'. The Council
at Kasimbazar used their utmost endeavour to pacify
him but to little effect, he positively insisting on
ample satisfaction. They believed that the affair
could not be accommodated without considerable e xpense,
Alamchand helped them to procure the dead body and get
it buried. He also prevailed with the Nawab to defer
taking any violent measures till the Calcutta Council
could come to a decision on the best way of dealing with
this unfortunate situation. The Council in Calcutta,
in their turn, authorised the English factors at
Kesimbazar to settle the dispute with the darbar in the
best manner they could (1),

Even before this order could reach Kasimbazar,
the Nawab had sent several parties of men to Berhaupose,
Katwa and most of the Aurungs (centres of wholesale trade)
to stop all business of the English. The importunities
of the Company's vakil with the Nawab to accommodate the
affair were of.no avail, The Nawab, on the contrary, laid

(1) Consultations, 27 September 1731.



(70)

certain charges of the abuse of trade on the English
and directed that as the English had not applied to

the King for a confirmation of the farman nor made him
any present, they must pay customson all their trade
from the beginning of his reign (1719) up to date. The
English vekil was instructed to plead on their behalf,
on the strength of the hasb-ul-hukm obtained by the
Company from the present King confirming the grants
made by Farrukhsiyar.

The English came to learn that the Nawab had
taken these extraordinary measures to ingratiate himself
with the Emperor by procuring him a present from them,
The fact that he was serious in the matter was proved
by his sending four miansabdars (1) to the aurungs to
enguire about the volume of the trade of the English
for the last five years so that he might make a
calculation of the customs payable on their trade, He
also compelled all zamindars to sign an undertaking not
to suffer anything to pass under the dastaks of the
English, Guards were set in many places to intercept
the boats of the English and several of them coming from
the aurungs were stopped. The English decided to petition

(1) Nobles holding a mansab or military rank of a
certain number of horse. Wilson, 'Glossary',

P. 550.
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the Nawab to redress their grievances and to enguire
about the reason for stopping their business, since they
had always conformed to the farman which had also been
confirmed by the reigning King (1).

The Nawab persisted in seeking satisfaction for
the murder of the men at the Chaunki and ordered the
persons concerned to be delivered up o him, Two soldiers
were put under arrest in this connection and were
threatened with execution unless a third soldier was
also surrendered. The English, on their part, decried
their responsibility in the affair by giving the King's
duhoy (2). _ A

There was talk of the Nawab's stopping the Patna
boats of the English, and several pieces of cannon were
actually sent to Mircha (Maricha), where the boats were
changed. The English were determined to resist force
by force ané declared that if any of the King's subjects
were killed in the process they could not be held
responsible. In view of the crisis, the English merchants
at Dacca were informed that it would not be possible at
that juncture to get them any redress at Murshidabar,

1 Consultations, 11 October 1731,
Exclamation in the name of the King,
calling out for mercy or redress.
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To put pressure on the Company, their business
was stopped by the Government at other important centres
of trade, particularly at Jagd®a and Dacca. The
Government. communigue to Dacca thus summed up the
case against the English @

'' Complaints had been made to His Majesty
of the Englishmen trading free of custom in
most parts of his Kingdom without his
imnediate farman whereby his revenues are
greatly decreased; and their trade being
so extensive, a great number of merchants
are prevented from treding and many ruined,
80 that the custom forthcoming from them
is entirely sunk in the English; that they
trade contrary to former grants in all the
country merchandize besides what are proper
for the Europe markets, in salt as in every
other commodity; that they protect private
merchants' goods under their dastaks both

by land aﬁd water, to their own gain and a

loss to His Majesty's revenue; that as the

English have a free mint at Madras large

quantities of silver are coined there into

rupees and brought here to Bengal which

occasions a deficiency of many lakhs in
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that branch of the subahdari'(1).

The Nawab's orders to stop the trade of the
English at Dacca were strictly followed. A zamindar
with two hundred men was sent to their wharf with
orders to prevent any boats with goods or passengers
going off (2).

While the trade of the English was being stopped
at all places, the tension was kept high by an
unfortunate squabble at Mircha (Maricha) between a
handful of English soldiers conducting some boats and
the guards of that place. As a result, a sergeant
was killed and two soldiers takén.prisoners. This
accident prevented the English from sending any military
party to the Chaukis (watching posts) for fear of being
overpowered by the numerous Government guards kept in
all the larger Chaukis(3).

The disturbances caused considerable commotion
among the Indian merchants who feared that they might
not be able to send their goods by the English ships.
But the Nawab heartened them by saying that he would
encourage the French to take all the freight aboard their
ships. The French were, in fact, admitted into his

presence and were honoured with seerpaws or head dresses(uf.

1 Consultations, 1/ October, 1731.

2 idem, idem,
z idem, iden,
idem, idem,
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The English adopted the customary method of
presenting an arisdast or petition to the Nawab as. also
copies of the hasb-ul-hukm on which they based their
claims. They at the same time took precautionary
measures by enlisting as many Europeans in the army
as possible, and buxerries (match lock men, or armed
Indian guards) were posted at all the important
strategic positions (1).

The efforts of the English to arrange a visit
of their chief to the Nawab with rich presents elicited
the reply from Haji Ahmed that the order of the Court
was of too great a conseguence to be dispensed with
for a trifle. The English acted on the reasonable
assumption that at the root of all these troublesfas
Fatehchand who harboured a grievance against them for
the loss he had sustained in Kantu's affair. On being
approached by the English for his friendship, Faﬁehchand
coldly said that he 'would not be their ememy', This
laconic answer induced the English to think that Fatehchand
would not come to the front but might help them behind
the scene if he was reimbursed for his previous loss,
Convinced that the friendship of Fatehchand would be
very costly, the English, none the less, coasidered it
worth having as there was no cheaper way left to settle

(1) Consultations, 17 October 1731 .
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matters and to prevent an absolute rupture with the
Goverament (1).

At this juncture the Nawab began to force the
issue, The English were privately informed that he
expected a lakh of rupees for the Emperor to confirm
their privileges, beside something for himself. He
also accused the English of having abused their
dastaks and of defrauding.the Emperor of his customs.

The Council of Fort William in Calcutta told
the Kasimbazar Council to carry on further negotiations
through Fatehchand in the hope that the impefial
hasb-ul-hukm which had led to so much trouble might
be reversed and a sanad granted them by the Nawab and
Diwan for the confirmation of their farman and
immediate currency of their business including the
currency of Madras and Arcot rupees on which
additional batta had been imposed (2).

Reports reached the English that while the
negotiations were in progress the English soldiers, now
numbering eighteen, imprisoned at Murshidsbad were being
ill used and that the Nawab's forces which were
constantly on the increase continued to abuse Englishmen

(1) Consultations, 23 October 1731,
(2) idem, 25 October 1731.
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everywhere and insult them in everything but their
persons, 0 bring about a speedy end to éll this, the
Council at Kasimbazar were told to offer a subahdari
present of Rs 40,000 to the Nawab and Rs 5,000 to the
Diwan and they were given the option to spend an
additional amount not exceeding Rs 10,000 for any
peremptory demand.

The English in Calcutta were of the opinion
that the orders which the Nawab professed to have
received from Delhi were fictitious and were against
any payment on that account. But in case any payment
had to be made on His Majesty's account,it was to
be preceded by a confirmation of all the grants under
the royal seal (1).

Ligtle progress, however, was made as
Fatehchand wanted a definite assurance of no less
than Rs 50,000 for himself, The Nawab, on his part,
threatened that he was determined to try the courage
of the English and insist upon a strict compliance
of the King's orders. Reports were current that he
was resolved to stop the Patna party and, in case of
resistance, would directly give orders to besiege the
Kasimbazar and Dacca factories, and if any of the

————— ———— - — —— — - — - ——— - —— — V- -~ — - ———— ——————— - —

(1) Consultations, 30 October, 1731.
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Nawab's people were killed, the English prisoners
whose number now amounted to thirty would be at once
put to death. News of extortion from the gumastas of
the English and from the English factories reached
from Malda.

The Kasimbazar Council, accordingly, wanted
greateer power ror themselves. They wanted the Calcutta
Council to consider seriously whether it would not be |
better to make up the dispute now, though at great
expense, than run the risk of being brought to a
shameful compliance at last, which, they believed,
must be the consequence of standing out longer. The
Nawab, in their opinion, was 'very rash and hasty
(far unlike Jaffar Khan), not at all regarding what
he does to obtain his end, let the country suffer
ever so much by it'. It would be madness, they
pointed out, for about forty men, which was the most
they had, to resist him in the heart of the province,
and the English at Dacca were certainly not in a better
position.

With the delay Fatehchand grew increasingly
angrye. He accused the English of dallying with him
to no purpose. He warned them that they were not
disputing for a trifle but the security of their farman.

Tt
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The Council in Calcutta,accordingly, agreed t; write to
the Kasimbazar factory to make as cheap a bargain as
they could with Fatehchand; but it was to be clearly
and definitely understood that whatever they gave him
nust be as an acknowledgement of his good service
and not as a payment of any demand or debt (1).

Invested with greater freedom and encouraged by
the fact that John Stackhouse, the chief of the
Kasimbazar factory,would soon be succeeding John Deane
as Governor and President of the Council of Fort
William in Calcutta (2), the Council at Kasimbazar
proceedéd to carry on the negotiations with determination
to bring about a settlement, Distressing messages
from all quarters, Ja@#a, Dacca and Malda, were
constantly pouring in regarding the stoppage of
business and harsh treatment of the English merchants,
and understandably John Stackhouse was anxious for
peace.

In secret talks with Fatehchand which followed,
the English were told that they must not flatter
themselves with hopea of getting over this affair
immediately because 'the Nawab has not in his power
to confirm their privileges if they would give him ever
so much money'. Fatehchand, therefore, advised them,

(1) Consultations, 1 November, 1731
idem, idem
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as a friend, that the best course/them would be to
get all guards removed and goods cleared by giving
a present to the Nawab which might induce him to write
to the Imperial Court in their favour and afterwards
to treat with him for a new farman which would be
absolutely necessary for the future currency of their
business (1).

Since the whole investment of the English
Company was at stake and the despatch of the Company's
ships impossible till the dispute came to an end, the
Council in Calcutta gave full powers to the Kasimbazar
Council to settle it upon the best terms they could,
but they were to be on the alert that whatever was given
must not be inserted in the darbar books, lest it
should be made use of to demand such a sum yearly for
the clearance of the business of the English (2).

With the help of Fatehchand the English at
Kasimbazar got a proposal from the Nawab that they
should meke a present of a lakh of rupees to the King
and a lakh of rupees to the Nawab out of which the

21 Copsultations, & November 1731,
idem, idem,
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Nawab was to defray the charges of the guards kept in
the factories. In case of the compliance of the
English, their soldiers and goods would be immediately
cleared and business would be allowed tOo go on as usual.
The Nawab would thenfavourably represent the case of
the English to the King to help them to procure a
confirmation of their privileges,

Difficulty at this stage was created by Diwan
Alamchand who insisted on the signing of an obligation
by the English to limit the number of their ships and
many other articles. Acceptance by the English of
this new proposal would,in effect,mean their giving up
all the privileges obtained in the past. Fatehchand
once again intervened and induced the Diwan and
Butasaddies to drop most of their demands. Still, the
English chief hesitated to sign the document embodying
the proposals, but he was ultimately persuaded by
Fatehchand who told him that, if he did not, worse
would follow,

The document duly received the Nawab's approval
and was brought to the English by Fatehchand with
parwanas for taking off the guards. Fatehchaz;d advised

the English not to be uneasy, since their business would
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again go on as usual and nothing more was required
then that they 'should not trade in Bengal salt,

be tel-nuts and oiher commodities from one part of

the country to another and - ingross in any sort of
goods to the prejudice of the King's subjects'. He
assured them of his good services in future aﬁd appe ared
to be satisfied with a note for Rs 50,000 which the
English gave him, He had been, in the opinion of the
Kasimbazar Council, of signal use in getting the
settlement, for instead of costing two laklis of rupees
he had finished it for Rs 180,000 including the
presents to the Diwan and other officers which amounted
10 no less than Rs 30,000, S0 he had saved for them
the helf lakh that they had given him (1).

The following is the translation of the
statement signed by John Stackhouse, the chief of the
Kasimbazar factory, in settlement of the dispute as
recorded in the Consultations ;-

"' I John Stackhouse Englishman de declare that
whereas the Husbalhookum is come to the
Newab Sowja Doula Cawn in order to prevent
all misdemeanours and encroachements which
we have made in our trade and all unlawful

(1) Consultations, 22 November 1731.
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practices and ordering us to procure his
Present most Gracious Majesties Royal
Phirmaund which the aforesaid Nabob has
ordered to be immediately put in execution,
I do therefore agree that I will not trade
- in any goods but what areé proper for Europe
and intermedle with such part of trade as
belong to the natives of Indostan either
in Bengal, Orixa or Patna, nor will I
protect or give sanction to any goods
€ither by land or water belonging to
Foreigners that the King may not be
defrauded of his customs, Nor will I trade
for or provide any more goods at the aurungs
than what is customary, that other traders
may not meke complaint against us, but
provide their own goods themselves, INopr
will I buy any of the natives either male
or female for slaves and I do oblige myself
to procure his present lMajesties Phirgpaund
from Court for the currency of our trade
custom free to which pburpose I have given
this obligation the 25th Jumadallowell the
14th year of His liajesties reign that is

(1) Consultations, 22 November 1731,
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The undertaking. given by the chief of the
Council at Kasimbazar did not meet with the approval
of the Calcutta Council who entered a protest in
their Consultations. The Calcutta Council thought
that John Stackhouse had acted unwarrantably in
giving an obligation by which the King's farman and
hasb-Ul-hukm were amnulled (1). Though the Kasimbazar
Council justified their conduct by pointing out that
there was no other alternative for them to save the
Company's investment and maintain the currency of
their business and shipping and that the obligation
might be repudiated, if necessary, at a more convenient
and opportune time in future, the Governor and Council
in Calcutta remained unconvinced and held that the
Kasimbazar Council had no authority to give such an
obligation and all of them jointly and separeately
must be answerable for the consequences (2),

While the Councils in Calcutta and Kasimbazar
were thus engaged, fresh trouble arose at Murshidabad,
The visit of the English chief to the darbar to mark
the end of the hostilities had to be deferred as the
Nawab demanded that the remainder of the money due
from the English and the Dutch on account of a tripartite

21 Consultations, 22 November 1731,
iden, 2 December, 1731.
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agreement made in 1729 to drive away the Ostenders
from Bengal should be paid before normal conditions
could be restored (1),

Complaints of oppression continued to come
from the English at Dacca where their ‘'affairs were
in the greatest distress', All the goods on the
pinnaces and boats ffom Rajapore had been taken out
and the soldiers on board were loaded with irons and
kept confined in a bamboo cage. The Patna fleet
which was coming the 'lower way' was in danger of
being attacked (2). Letters were also received from
Patna that the local Nawab had sent a body of troops
to surround the English factory and ordered their
business to be stopped unless a present similar to
the payment made to Shuja Khan was given him (3).

lMieanwhile conferences and discussions took place
between the English and the Dutch as to the possible
course of action., It appeared that the Dutch had
placed an amount of Rs 62,500 with the Government
for the use of the mint which could be seized by them

at any time, The lukewarmness on the part of the Dutch

21; Consultations, 29 November 1731. See Chapter III.p./44
2 idem. Foproutes and communications, see | ;

: Chepter VI, f.>®
(3) Consultations, 27 December 1731,
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for joint action against the Nawab grew into a
definite refusal. They were rather prepared to pay
the English portion of the money, if necessary (1).

While an epistolary duel was going on between
the English Councils in Calcutta and Kasimbazar, John
Stackhouse, their chief at Kasimbazar, was personally
insulted, and 'hands were laid on him' by one of the
agents of the Nawab who came to demand the sum of
Rs 62,500 payable by the English on account of the
tripartite agreement (2). The Kasimbazar factory was
surrounded by the forces of the Government to compel
payment (3).

At last the Council in Calcutta had to come
down and authorise the payment of their portion to
the Nawab, and a sum of Rs 50Q},QOO was despatched,
from Calcutta to Kasimbazar, under an Ensign and fifty
men so that the necessary payments under all heads might
be made and the Company's investment duly contracted
for, The Council at Késimbazar were instructed to
keep one hundred soldiers in the garrison to ensure the
safety of the Company's affairs, The faudjar of Hugli
who had remained friendly to the English at this time

é1 Consultations: 6,13,19,20,22 December, 1731, For

2 Anglo-Dutch relations see Chap.III, D142
Consultations, 19 December, 1731.

(3) idem, 20 December 1731.
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of trouble was rewarded with a.preéent of Rs 2,350
as an acknowledgement of his good services (1),
Feelings of estrangement continued for some
time at Patna. The local Nawab accused the English
of carrying on private trade in the name of the
Company and insisted that their business should be
stopped unless the reigning King's farmaﬁ was procured.
Hugh Barker, the chief of the Patna factory, told
the Council in Celcutta that the vakil of the English
was instructed to say that it was all the Company's
trade and assured the Council that they would
'endeavour to keep the vail (veil?) over it'. Efforts
were also continued at Delhi to get the necessary
privileges from the imperial Court. (2).
At Murshidabad affairs were soon settled
because Fatehchand stood guarantor for the payment

of the money, Stackhouse, the Kasimbazar chief,

accompanied by his two colleagues, Fazakerley and Hel sey,

visited the Nawab, on 5 January 1732, and wes kindly
received, The Nawab gave them a great many assurances

of his favour in future (3).

idem, idem,

(1) Consultations, 4 January 1732.
idem, 11 January 1732.
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On 19 January, 1732, Stackhouse came to
Calcutta and personally handed over the following
parwena addressed by Shuja Khan to John Deane, the
President and Governor of the Council of Fort William
in Calcutta, which was obtained on promise of paying
an additional sum of Rs 9,500 -

'"John Deane, Governor I salute you and am

| very well pleased and satisfied with your
fair dealing and management and have not
any ill will whatever against you. You
ought to preserve a good understanding
with me, and by a good management af yours,
g0 on with your business as customary
without doing anything contrary to law and
custom' (1).

There was no further stopping of the English
trade at Kasimbazar end news also came from Paina of
the restoration of normal business and a friendly
reception, by the local Nawab, of Hugh Barker, the
chief of the Patna factory (2).

(1) Consultations Extreordinary, 19 Jenuary 1732.
(2) idem 51 January 1732,
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Suja Khan's despatches to the imperial Court
reveal the nature of his double dealing with the
English. At the time when the trouble at Murshidabad
appeared to have cooled down, the Council in Calcutta
received a communication from Patna about the Nawab's
activities to prejudice the English cause at the
imperial Court. Anoépchand, the vakil of the Company -
at the Court, intimated to Hugh Barker, the English
chief at Patna, that Shuja Khan, the Subah of Bengal,
while forwarding a lakh of rupees to the Court, had
written to the King that ''the English depending so
greatly on the valour of their soldiers under cover
of the Company carried on an extravagant trade and
sunk vast customs; however, that he had stopped their
boats and business and taken this Laack of rupees
which he now sends in lieu of these customs the English
had sunk.....Wherefore if their vakil seeks after an
order (Husbalhookum) for their becoming custom free,
that your Majesty will not grant it, But that.it may
be a general order of Instructions, that the English
be compelled to.pay custom like the Dutch, the French
and other Europeans? (1).

(1) Counsultations, 31 January 1732.
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The Wekil continued that in accordance with
the tenor of this letter an order from the Emperor
to take the customgduties from the English was about
to be sent to all the subahships of the Kingdom.
When the vakil had the jinformation about the
preparation of this warrant, he saw the few high
6fficials who were in charge of the affair and was
assured that the warrant might be destroyed on payument
of 800 gold mohars or about Rs 10,000 and a favourable
order on Shuja Khan might bebbtained on payment of
another sum of Rs 10,000, The vakil further wrote
that he had no power to spend the-Company's gold
'mores' (mohars), but seeing everything going to ruin
he agreed to it and then stated, ''If I have done well
you write to me so, otherwise I have been in faults'' .
The concluding portion of his letter, ﬁs summed up by
the Calcutta Council, ran thus, '' The Court is drowned
in luxury end the King and nobility all cowards
wherefore if we (the English) attacked them at sea
and stopped the Port, Suja Cawn could alter his measures
and mitigate his resentment, and when}£§Zfd at Court,

we had troubled the Port they would be softened likewise''

(1)  Consultations, 31 January 1732.
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The Council in Calcutta approved of the measures
hitherto taken at the imperial Court and expressed
their willingness to give,in all,Rs 20,000 including
the éum of Rs 10,000 mentioned in the Court vakil's
letter for obtaining an order or hasb-ul-hukm on fhe
Nawab Shuja Khan confirming King Farrukhsiyar's
farman for the duty free trade and also for’é letter -
to the Nawab from Khan DauXan, an influential
nobleman at the Court who was friendly to the English,
recomnending the punctual execution of the order (1).
Towards the end of February 173%2, Stackhouse
succeeded John Deane as President and Governor @f Council
in Calcutta (2). Since he had been the chief at
Kasimbazar during the crisis and a principal actor in
the negotiations between the darbar and the English,
the arrangements‘between the parties had henceforth a
brighter prospect of agpplication by both sides.
Negotiations to obtain a hasb-ul-hukm or order
from the Emperor Muhammad Shah confirming Farrukhsiyar's
farman were continued and the Council at Patna forwardéd
a draft of the proposed order to the Court vakil along
with the necessary amount of Rs 20,000, The wording

(1) Consultations, 31 January 1732.
idem, idem,
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of the hasb-ul-hukm which was to be addressed to the
Subahs of Bengal, Bihar and Orissa was drafted at Patna
and forwarded to the Delhi vakil for necessary action,
It ran thus ; -
''" That the English trade acecording to the

farman of Farrukhsiyar and the Husbalhookum

of the present King Mahmud Shaw is custom

free, that the several governments obey those

orders and that the English buy and sell and

carry their goods by land or water from one

place or Subahship to another where they

please without let or hindrance'' (1).

The money was to be paid when the order was
actually issued (2).

Relations between the English Company and the
Bengal darbar continued with the usual fault finding
on both sides on matters like slavery (3), imprisonment
of soldiers and allegations regarding . private trade,
Threats were sometimes held;?;r stopping the trade of
the English, The English henceforth were careful not
to send the Bengal salt up the river, On one occasion

the salt found on board the Patna fleet was thrown

iden , idenm .

(1§ Consultations, 25 February 1732.
See Chapter VI, p. 337
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overboard, and orders were issued that the boats
carrying salt were not to be given the protection
of the English fleet (1). The Company was anxious
to maintain good relations with the Nawab and to
create a favourable atmosphere for the reception of
the hasb-ul-hukm from the imperial Court‘(z).

Trouble once again ensued from the conduct of
the English soldiers of the Patna fleet who insisted
on carrying the Bengal salt up the river., The efforts
of the Calcutta Council to stop the spurious business
proved futile. A mutiny was apprehended if the salt
was unloaded on the way. Accordingly, the Company
decided to purchase the entire quantity of salt on
board the fleet and the accompanying boats, and after
keeping the quantity which was permitted to be carried
as free allowance for use, the remainder was to be
thrown into the river. (3). °

Instructions were sent to Kasimbazar to make
up the matter with the Nawab and to offer suitable
presents to him so as to stop any undesirable clamour(y).

(1) Consultations, 15 August 17%2,

2 idem, 21 August 1732,
9 idem, 5 August 1732
4 idem, 50 August 1752,
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The nature of the abuse practised by the
soldiers is evident from the fact that some of them
were carrying five or six hundred maunds of salt

in several boats which could not have been possible
except by bribing the ghat-manjhi or the person who
regulated the movement of boats in landing places on
the river. The Company's agents decided to purchase
the entire gquantity at Rs 2 per bag as wanted by the
soldiefa and toleave it ashore, there being no boats
to send the salt down (1), But the guantity of salt
was 80 great that in case it was landed a large sum
of money would have to be paid to the Nawab for
liberty either to sell or send it down to Calcutta,
The action of the Kasimbazar Council to make up the
affair with the Nawab for Rs 15,000 was therefore
recommended for approval, in as much as the expense
was considered to be much less than the loss which
Otherwise might have to be incurred (2).

In spite of petty disturbances here and there,
the relations between the Company and the darbar had
definitely improved. Towards the end of the year 1752,
Shuja Khan's appointment as the Subahdar of Bihar was
solemnized with public rejoicing. The friendly

1 Consultations, 4 September, 1732,
idem, 11 September, 1/%2.
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relations between the English and the Nawab were marked
by a congratulatory message sent by John Stackhouse,
President and Governdér of Council in Calcutta, to the
Nawab (1).

However, it was not long before the relations
between the Company and the darbar became embittered
on the question of jurisdiction in two cases in which
the Nawab wanted the English to surrender certain
persons 1o him for trial. The first was the case of
an Armenian merchant named Khwaja Nazar against whom
there were certain proceedings in the darbar, While
the English acted promptly in preventing Khwaja Nazar
sailing from Calcutta for Europe (2), they would not
permit him to be captured in Calcutta by the Nawab's
forces and transported to Murshidabad. They were
determined " not to submit their merchants be ing
carried off the place which would be of the utmost ill
consequence to the Hon'ble Company's affairs as it
would be a precedent fbr the darbar to demand every
men of substance out of the place" (3). They would
rather prefer to make up the affaif on payment of R820,000;
but the Nawab would not accept anything less than Rs50,000

idem 4 Becember 1732

idem, 17 April 1733.

§1§ Consultations, 4 and 20 December 1732
2
2 )
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which was considered by the English to be exorbitant (1).
The other case arose out of a dispute between

Omichand, one of the merchants under the protection

of the English, and Goorbux, an inhabitant of Murshidabad,
who had come to Calcutta on business. The quarrel
between them led to the capture of Omichand by Goorbux
at his house. IFearing that bloodshed and murder might
be the ultimate result, the English sent a number of
goldiers Bo release Omichand. In the scuffle that
followed, six of Goorbux's men were killed and two
English soldiers were wounded. Omichand was released
and Goorbux was kept as a prisoner by the English (2).
The father of Goorbux lodged a complaint with the darbar
which promptly put Omichand's brother, Samji, under
arrest and kept him as a hostage at lurshidabad (3).

The Nawab's point of view was that the affair
did not relate to the English at all, but that it was a
dispute between two of the King's own subjects in which
eight or ten men had been killeé and several others
wounded, thaézié;&as Subahdar of the province both
Omichand and Goorbux ought to come before him. He

instanced the case of Kantu, the broker of the English

1) Consultation, 17 April 1753.
idem, 19 April 1735 (Consultations Extraordinary

(3) idem, 23 April 1733.
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at Kasimbazar, who, flying when indebted to the Company,
was; on the application of the Company, delivered to
the English., He held that in this case,when a native
of Bengal was hurt and many had complained on his behalf,
the persons concerned should be delivered up likewise (1).

The position once again became critical.and the
business of the English was stopped at several places.
John Stackhouse, the President and Governor of the
English Council in Calcutta, addressed an arisdast or
petition to the Nawab concerning Omichand's affair.
In reply the Nawab questioned the propriety of the
conduct of the English in intervening in this affair
and charged them with bloodshed and murder, ''Throughout
this empire,'' he stated, " no merchants have ever
dared engage in blood and will you that are merchants
be guilty of such violences?' He accused the English
of having given protection to Omichand, which had made
him s0 bold as to defy the authority of the Government,
and demanded his surrender (2).

The Council in Calcutta were very much
embarrassed by the Nawab's persistence in requiring
of the English what was never submitted to, the
delivering up of their merchants. Since their business

was in several places brought to a stand, they considered

(1) Consultations,7 May 1733
(2) idem, 28 May 1735.
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that the Nawab was determined to reduce theu to the
same unhappy dilemma as he did two years ago. Since
the Council were not at all willing to hazard the
disappointment of not being'able to despatch the
Company's ships to Europe in good time, they wanted to
gsettle the affair as early as possible and therefore
instructed Hugh Barker, the chief of Kasimbazar ,
accordingly (1).

The vakil of the English at Murshidabad having
sought accommodation on both Khwaja WNazar Case and
Omichand-Goorbux case, was told that nothing less than
Rs 150,000 would be acceptable to the Nawab. The
Council in Calcutta considered the amount exorbitant
and determined to hazard everything rather than submit
to such impositions (2).

The Nawab's attitude to the English at this
time becomes clear from the following letter to Khan
Dauan at the imperial Court in Delhi in reply to
enguiries about his opinion on giving further privileges

to the Company

'"" I am scarce able to recount to you the abominable

~

practices of this people. When they first came to

this country they petitioned the then Government

£1 Consultations, 28 May 1733.
2 idem, 11 June 1753.
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. " in a humble manner for liberty to purchase

a spot of ground to build a factory house
upon, which was no sooner granted but they
run up a strong fort, surrounded it with a
ditch which has a communication with the

river and mounted a great number of guns

upon the walls. They have enticed several
merchants and others to go and take protection
under them and they collect a revenue which
amounts yearly to Rs 100,000. In the reign of
Aurangzib their trade never exceeded three
ships' cargoes and was well purchased within
the pﬁovince of Bengall. Their investments

of late have been immoderate and they both
import and export other merchants' goods in
their own names besides which they rob and
plunder and carry great numbers of the King's
subjects of both sexes into slavery to their
own country which hath obliged me to give very
strict orders to all my Phousdars acout them..,
They now begin to form several towns, which it
is feared, may in time become strongholds, and
consequently a difficult matter for the

Government to remove them. It is therefore my
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''opinion that if any faveurs are designed
them by the imperial Court it may be of
ill conseguence to give them a Phirmaund
for any other priviledges than they
enjoyed in the reign of Aurangzib'{1).

In spite of the hostile attitude of the Nawab,
the vakil of the English at Delhi succeeded,by bribing
the Court officials,in procuring a hasb-ul-hukm so
desired by the English (2).

The tension at the Murshidabad darbar and the
trade stalemate in Bengal still continued. Rasiklal,
the vakil of the English at the darbar was suspected
by them of deceit and other vile practices. The Council
in Calcutta ordered that he should be sent down to them
for examination (3). The Company's boat which was
carrying the vakil under a guard Qas overtaken by a
chauki or watching boat of the Government at a place
called Muhoa, In the confusion that followed the
vakil fled from the Company's boat and was later seen
o~ &e¢ on the bank of the river surrounded by a large
number of men. The crowd was sO0 big that the English
considered it discreet not to try and recapture the

vakil who proceeded towards Murshidabad. The incident

idem 18 June and 2 July 1733.

§1 Consultation, 18 June 1733.
idem 18 June 1733.
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proved the helplessness of the Company to, regulate
the conduct and movement of its own servants. The
President of the Council in Calcutta made a
represeantation to the Nawab about the irregular
proceedings, but nothing came out of it (1).

Another rebuff was yet to come from the Nawab
of Dacca who accused the English of having monopolised
the whole trade of the country ''much to the prejudice
of the King and his subjects' . He also laid stress
on the unauthorised private trade of the English
merchants which exceeded that of the Company (2).

The affairs of the English at the darbar were
in fact mismanaged both by their late vakil, Rasiklal,
aa also by Hugh Barker, the chief at Kasimbazar, against
whom there were charges of dishonesty (3). Meanwhile
the case of Khwaja Nazar was settled through the
negotiations of his vakil, Muhammad Jaffer. The Nawab
accordingly sent a parwana to the English in Calcutta
not to detain Khwaja Nazar any further but give him
freedom of movement as he desired. (4).

The Goorbux-Omichand case, however, continued to
trouble the relations between the darbar and the English.

D et —

(1) Consultations, 8 July 1733.

(2 idem, idem,
éz idem, 12 dJuly 173534 7 Nov. 1734k; 21 June 1736;
iden, 1 August 1733, ( 10 Oct.1736.
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A request fron Haji Ahmed for the release of Goorbux
from the prison in Calcutta was ignored by the English(1).
None the less, the tension to a large extent had died
down, and except for some trouoble here and there the
English carried on their business without much
interruption. It was for this reason that though a
hasb-ul-hukm from the imperidl Court was obtained by
the English, the Council at Kasimbazar did not consider
it wise to.present it to the darbar lest the Nawab
should think that the English were making complaints
against him at Delhi (2).

There was a sensation in Calcutta on 17 August
1756, when it was discovered that Goorbux had escaped
from prison. The Council at once instructed the
Kasimbazar factory to demend of the darbar that he
should be delivered over to the English (3). But though
Goorbux was seen moving about at Murshidabad, the
darbar officers informed the English that the Nawab
would never agree to deliver him up (4). The Council
at Kasimbazar considered that it would be useless to
pursue this affair since Goorbux had no power to do
anything that might prejudice the interests of the
English (5).

(1)Consultations, 27 August 17) .52; Idem, 15 January 1734.
5% idem , 17 August 173b.(4) Idem, 17 August 1736,
25 idem , 13 Sept. 1736,
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The English had been confronted with fresh
difficulties since September 17%H. The Nawab made a
demand on them for Rs 25,236-1-0 (less Rs 4,252-1-0

paid the Kro®i or collector), being the amount due to

him on account of his jagir in the Calcutta towns for
eight years (1). Once again did the English take

their stand on the farmans, nishans and sanads on

which they based their claims on the towns and declined
to pay the money (2). The Nawab held that these grants
were made to the English in the infancy of the Company's
trade when they did not load above four or five ships,

and that they now loaded a hundred (3).

2 idem, 15 and 19 November, 1735,

5) The language is obviously an exaggeration. In 1716-17
when the English obtained the great farman, the number of
ships despatched by the Company to the East was thirteen,
of which three were specifically bound for Bengal and two
for the 'Coast and Bay', while in 1735-36 the number of
ships despatched to the East was sixteen, of which only
one was bound specifically for Bengal, one for Bengal and
Bencoolen, one for Bengal and Bombay and six for the
eastern coast of India. (vide: Hardy, Register of Ships
employed in the service of the Hon,United East India
Company, pp.3-11).

The above list, however, includes only the ships of
the Company sailing vetween England and the trade
centres of the East and does not take into account
the smaller ships that were used by the servants of
the Company and free merchants in their coastal and
other kinds of trade.

§1§ Consultations, 2 September, 1755.
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He wondered why the English should not be ashamed of
pleading difficulty in paying so small a sum and declared
that they deserved no favour since they screened

immense quantities of merchants' goods, exported them

in their own names and defrauded the King of his
customs (1). |
In support of the Nawab's claims Haji Ahmed
declared that the grants could not help the English
as the Nawab could claim the amount from the '' towns"
which were his jagir and were now vastly enriched (2).
The Haji further advised the English not to precipitate
a crisis but to pay the small amount to satisfy the
Nawab without going into the legal aspect of the matter(3).
The failure of the Englisn to act on this advice, he
said, would lead to a storm, leaving the Haji powerless
to be of service to them (4).
The Council in Calcutta wanted to settle the
affair and authorised the Kasimbazar factory to proceed
accordingly. But since there was no actual stoppage of
business at any place just at that time, the Kasimbazar
Council decided not to make any advances when the

(1) Consultations, 19 November, 1735.

2 idem, idem.
2 idem 25 November, 1735,
?
idem, 29 November, 1755,
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Government were not so pressing (1). This dilatoriness
on the part of Hugh Barker, the chief, and his Council
cost the English dear, as their boats were soon afterwards
stopped at Hugli; Jalangi and other strategic points
and had to be cleared with the help of the military (2).
When ultimately the Kasimbazar Council offered
to make payment to the Nawab, it was too late and not
even Rs 3%0,000 was acceptable to him. Once again a
catalogue of the faults of the English was narrated Dy
Haji Ahmed who declared that the Nawab would now accept
nothing less than '' Laacks of rupees or else what was
paid upon the last dispute'' (3). Instead of submitting
to the payment of so large an amount, the English
preferred to express their resentment by putting a stop
to their business altogether, hoping this might bring
about an accommodation time enough to contract for their
next investment (4). While attempts were being made
to bring about a settlement, the Nawab was rather
perturbed by the report that the English were reparing
t0 contend with him, He immediately posted forces at
Plassey and other important points to stop anybody

escaping from the Kasimbazar factory (5).

(1)Consultations, 1g December, 1735.

éz idem, January 1736.
3 idem, 28 February 1736.
24 ;dem, idemn.

5 idem 18 March 1736,

7
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For some time higgling and bargaining continued
on both sides, till the Nawab touched the English on
their most sensitive point. He appeared to be very
generous to an Ostend doctor who was in his service
and expressed his great tendérness towards the Germans.
Their locked-up factory at Saidabad was opened to them
and the Emperor's flag was permitted to be hoisted.
Though the report was not seriously taken notice of
by the English, it had the effect of raising the amount
which they were prepared to advance to the Nawab (1).

The matter was ultimately settled om payment of
Rs 55,000 by the English (2) and parwana for the Calcutta
towns was obtained from Shuja Khan in July 173%6. It
confirmed the revenue of the ''towns" to the English
Company, ' according to custom'', and directed the
6fficers of the Government not to molest the English,
nor to make any unusual demand on them, nor to insist
on the annual rencwal of the grant. The English were
to be encouraged to make such improvement of the " towns"
as they thought necessary (3).

Before the final issue of the parwana, Hugh Barker,
the chief of the Kasimbazar factory was dismissed from

the Company's service on charges of dishonesty (R) . His

(1) Oonsulthhibne, 27 Neyi736 . . - .
2 idem, 24 June, 6 July, 1736.
3 idem, 16 July, 173%6.
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successor Thomas Braddyll visited the Nawab on 13 September
17%6.  He was kindly received and was presented with a
Seerpsw (dress of honour). The Nawab expressed the wish
that the English would carry on their business without
molestation (1).

Though large sums of money were from time to
time paid to the darbar on the Company's account, no
receipts were given. VWhen the Company introduced the
system of having receipts for all transactions, its
vekil at Kasimbazar stated that if he should demand
any such thing he was liable to be insulted, for it was

not customary nor indeed safe for them to give receipts

for transactions of a clandestine nature (2).

Towards the end of the year 1736, the batta
(difference or discount in exchange) of Madras and Arcot
rupees was: raised from 3% and 4% per cent, respectively,
to a uniform rate of 73 per cent for conversion into
siccas or Bengal rupees (3). The English regarded this

as a violation of Farrukhsiyar's farman and objected.

They feared that tame submission on their part would

embolden the Nawab to take greater liberty with them,

2 idem, idenm

§1§ Consultations, 13 September, 1736.
3 idem, 26 Bepteab. 1757
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even to the extent of " invalidating their dearly
bought farmen'' (1). But in spite of their efforts
they could not secure any orders for the remission
of the additional batta imposed (2).

In April 1738, some commotion was created at
Patna at- the news of the advance of the Marathas
near Benares. It was with great difficulty that the
Patna factors maintained the morale of the sarafs or
shroffs (money lenders and changers) and other
business men. Additional forces were sent to Patna
for the security of the Company's property and
investment. The news was soon received that the
Marathas had marched back and the investments were
out of danger (3).

The invasion of Nadir Shah and the fear of
the overthrow of the existing regime created some
consternation in the Calcutta Council who directed
their vakil at Delhi to watch closely the movement
of the French snd the Dutch and to cultivate friendly
relations with the men in close touch with Nadir Shah
80 ghat the interests of the English might not suffer

in the event of a revolution (4).

idem, 11 October 1757, 15 lay 1738,
See Chapter IV, pp.if%3- 196
idem, 1% April and 15 May 1738.

§Consu1tation8, 26 September 1737,
)
) idem, 12 March 1739.
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The death of Shuja Khan, in March 1739, had
some unsettling effect on the English Company. Though
the Company and the Nawab had differed on many occasions,
the final breach was always averted. A system of
give-and-take which had developed in their relations
was teken full adventage of both by the Nawab and the
Company. His successor Sarfaraj Khan was no match
for the intriguing and ambitious nobility. Quick
changes which occurred in the politics of Bengal
afforded opportunities for exploitation 6f the province
by adventurers both within and from outside.

The English cultivated good relations with
the new Nawab.(1). But they had to face many
difficulties. The credit of the lMoghul Government
was so much lowered by the invasion of Nadir Shah, that
already coins of the Persian €mperor were being minted
at Murshidebad, and Fatehchand would not lend 10 the
Company any other type of money but Nadir Shah's
siccas (2).

Haji Ahmed whose influence with Sarfaraj Khan,
on the assumption of office by the new Subah, was
immense, threatened to stop all business of the English

21 Consultations 12 Marxh 1739.
2 idem, 27 April 1759.
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unless they would undertake to procure a new farman
within four months. The 0ld royal family that granted
the farman, he said, was conguered, and the English
would not be allowed the continuance of their privileges
unless a new farmen was obtained from the new monarch.
The English, who kept themselves well informed about
happenings in Delhi, protested that no one had yet sat
on the throne in the room of Muhammad Shah, neither

was there intimation of any settled government at Delhi,
None the less, they were reluctant to create & crisis
at this time and instructed the Kasimbazar Council

t0o act very cautiously and keep the Haji pacified on
reasonable terms (1).

At the end of May 1739, information was received
at Murshidabad of Nadir Shah's departure from Delhi
towards Persia. Orders were soon issued by the
Government to break Nadir Shah's seals and to make a
new one in Muhammaed Shah's name. This encouraged the
English to hope that their dastaks would henceforth
pass without any interruption as in the past. But to
their surprise they found that Haji Ahmed and the
darbar officers expected a present of Rs 15,000 before
their business could be cleared. Though the Courmdl

(1) Consultations, 11 May and 31 May 1739.
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in Calcutta considered this to be a most extravagant
demand they impressed on the Kasimbazar Council the
necessity of keeping up a good understanding with

the darbar officers and, more particularly, with an
influential man like the Haji. They dared not risk
disobliging him and thereby prejudicing the Company's
affairs at.that juncture. A moderate present was
there fore recommended for the Hajl by the Calcutta
Council (1).

The clause of Farrukhsiyar's farman regarding
the restitution of ships wrecked or led astray by
storm was at this time relied upon by the Company to
demand of the faudjar of Chittagong that the ships
*'grandison'' and ''Travancore'' which were led
astray in that area by violent storm might not be
plundered or damaged in any way. The unfriendly faujdar
who had taken away from the '' Grandison'' money and
goods worth Rs 7,242-12-6 was brought to book, and the
parwanas which were issued by the Nawab on the
strength of the farman not only secured the safety of
the ships but also the restitution of the property
of the English.,

PSp———— R S sttt —————— - —— - - - - ——_— —— -

(1) Consultations, 31 May 1739.
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The question of giving a present to the new
Nawab Sarfaraj Khan throws some light on Anglo-Indian
relations in Bengal. The English proposed to.pay
him presents of the same value as were given to his
father at the time of his assumption of office (1).

But Haji Ahmed objected to this and laid stress on the
huge expenses which the Government had to incur to

keep the country safe and ensure the security of the
business of the English when there was so much danger
of an invasion from outside. He threatened that unless
a proportion of the extra expenses which the Nawab had
to make on account of the military was included in

the present, an armed force would be set on the English
factory (2).

The English regarded this as an unwarrantable
demand, and undaunted by the Haji's threat they pointed
out the sbsurdity of the Nawab's plea of having
protected the trade of the Company. They, on the other
hand, asserted that the Government ought to be sensible
of the important services rendered by the English army
at Patna when, in the previous year, there was a threat
of a lMaratha invasion. The presence of the English army

(1) The present made to Shuja Khan on his accession ‘
was worth Rs 13787-11-6 - Vide, Bengal General Letter,
2% January 1729, Letter Book, vol.21, p. 677.

(2) Consultations 12 November, 17359.
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at Patna,as they maintained, not only protected the
trade of the Company but also dissuaded the enemy
from attempting an invasion and thus gave security

to the state (1). The questions of security of the
state and of the commerce of the English Company had,
by this time, become interconnected. This was
ultimately revealed in 1757.

The English were, as a rule, determined not to
meddle in Indian politics and wanted to avoid armed
conflicts, unless their rights and property were in
danger. This was clear from the instructions they
sent to their Agent at Balasore when the Nawab of
Orissa requested the Company to assist him with some
sloops in his encounter with the Raja of Konika. As
a body of merchants they would not think of entering
into an affair of this nature which in the end might
embarass the Company in some way or other (2)a: « They
also preferred not to take sides when Sarfaraj Khan head
asked for their military assistance against Ali-wardi
Khan (3).

The news of Ali-wardi Khan's victory over Sarfaraj Khan,

idem, 3 April 1740

(1) Consultations, 12 November 1759
idem, 21 April 1740
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in 1740, was however re-assuring to them becguse of
their expectation of a settled Government. Ali-wardi
Khen, on his accession, showed a spirit of goodwill
to the English in Bengal. While he demanded presents
from the French and the Dutch and threatened them,
in case of their non-compliance, with stopping their
business, he was pleased to inform the English that
he had received the present which they had made to
Sarfaraj Khan and was satisfied with it (1). But the
English stood in awe of the Nawab's elder brother,
Haji Ahmed. The Haji suspected that a son-in-law of
Sarfaraj Khan had taken shelter in the Kasimbazar
factory. In spite of the denial of the English that
he was in the factory, the Haji wanted to have it
- searched by force. Though the searching of an English
factory by the Government forces would serve as a
most evil precedent, which the English were first
determined to resist, they were ultimately prepared
to submit rather than alienate the Haji (2).

The Company was now determined to cultivate
peaceful relations with the Government. When the
Nawab of Dacca demanded a huge present as a condition

513 Consultations %1 July 1740.
idem, 25 April 1740.
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precedent for giving clearance to the business of

the English, the Calcutta Council advised the Dacca
factory not to exceed the usual present in a public
way, although a private present made to secure their
object would not be considered ill spent (1). However
unreasonable it might be on the part of the darbar
officials to throw impediments in the way of their
trade, the Cpouncil in Calcutta considered it worth
their while, for the sske of the Company's interests,
to be at an expense rather than suffer their business
to be impeded (2).

The fafman given by PFarrukhsiyar was held in
high regard by the Company throughout the period under
review, Whenever there was any infringement of any
of its provisions, the English made representation to
the authorities to honour the farman: in both letter
and spirit. They considered the provisions of the
farman a sufficient safeguard against injustice and
oppression and for the security of their trade, In
December 1740, the Kasimbazar Council informed the
President of Fort William that the farman obtained from
Muhammad Shah had, during the struggle between Sarfaraj

21 Consultations, 11 September 1740.
idem) idem,




(115)

Khan and Ali-wardi Khan, fallen into private hands

and that a copy of the same might be procured on
payment of Rupees ten or twelve thousand. The President
and Council in Calcutta had no hesitation in affirming
that the new farman could not in any way benefit the
Company more than what they could expect from the farman
of Farrukhsiyar obtained by John Surman and his colleagues
at Court in 1717. uany a dispute with the Government
had been settled on its basis. Granting that Muhammad

. Shah's farman contained anything new, the custodians

of the Company's rights in Calcutta considered it highly
improper to procure it in the clandestine way proposed,
although the sum required was insignificant. Grants of
this nature, they held, should always be received in

a public way, which would undoubtedly meke them more
effective when it became necessary to assert the

Company's privileges (1).

(1) Consultations, 8 December, 1740.
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Chapter III

Other European Traders

One result of the grant of Farrukhsiyar's
-farman was 10 secure for the English a favoured
posifion as compared with the other European groups
trading in India. The English alone obtained the
right of trading duty-free in return for the payment
of a consolidated sum in Bengal and Gujarat. They
alone had the right of carrying goods under their
dastaks or permits (1) without any interference from
the Government., This gave the English, relative to
their rivals, a great opportunity. From time to time,
as we shall see in the following pages, the other
European traders co-operated with the English and, on
Occasions, challenged them. The Portuguese, the Dutch
and the Freanch had, all of them, at one time or other,
grown jealous of the prosperity of the English Company.
Even the mighty Hapsburg empire, in the days of its
splendour and glory'following the peace of Utrecht,
had made an organised attempt, through the enterprising
merchants of Ostend, to establish its hold in Bengal.

(1) See Chapter II, p. 33-34
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Formidable as was the opposition of such forces, the
English by their courage, fortitude and instinctive
determination to place the interests of their commerce
above all other considerations put themselves in a
position of superiority. Their final triumph was not
obtained till some years after Plassey. DBut the first
four decades of the eighteenth century witnessed a
steady strengthening of their position in the economic
system of Bengal. The way to political power had

been paved.

The first Europeans to settle in Bengal were
the Portuguese. Though at one time they controlled
the sea routes of the entire Indian Ocean, the Portuguese
had, by the end of the seventeenth century, ceased to
occupy any important position in the politics and
commerce of Bengal. Their zeal for conversion and
their oppressive commercial policy had long alienated
both people and Government.

Though the Portuguese as a political unit had
no importance in bBengal in the eighteenth century, a
considerable number of them lived in Calcutta and the

surrounding areas as also in other centres of trade,
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They were sufficiently numerous to receive separate
consideration from the authorities of the East India
Company. Whenever ships of unknown origin arrivea
in the Bay of Bengal, the English issued notices in
Calcutta in various languages, '' in English,
Portugueze, Persians, Armenians, Nagarees and Bengalls, '
asking people not to have any dealings with theﬁ {134
That the English feared the possibility of_a
commercial revival of the Portuguese is evident from
the fact that, as late as 1733, they took an '"obligation
from their merchants at Kasimbazar ynder penalty of
Rs 10,000 not to trade with the Portuguese ships" (2).
Lakshmichand, a banian (paid agent) of the English
merchants in Calcutta, being suspected of buying goods
from the Portuguese ships was ordered off the place so
as to deter others from similar practices (3). In the
following January, special penal measures were taken
againsy two English merchants whose goods were ' designed
to be freighted on the Portuguese ships "' (4).
The arrival of a Portuguese ship in the Hugli, in
October 1737, created a good deal of commotion among the

(1) Consultations, 22 June 1723; 15 August 1726,

(2 idem, 2 July 1733.
iz idem, 17 Sept. 17}i
idem, 9 Jan. 173
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Engkish, and all merchants under the protection of the
English Company were forbidden to trade with her 1 T
Similar steps were taken on the arrival of another
Portuguese ship. in the river in August, 1740 (2).

The decline of the Portuguese in Bengal in the
eighteenth century was evident. There were scattered
Portuguese settlements but no organized factories. The
Portuguese of this period in Bengal were mostly
children of the soil. They lacked the rough vigour
of the early pioneers who were bold enough to challenge
even the authority of the great Moghul Bmperor Shah
Jahan. But their descendants, as early as the last
guarter of the seventeenth century, though numerous in
Hugli, were reduced to low and mean conditions. "' Their
trade was not worth mentioning; their subsistence being
to be entertained in the Mogul's pay as soldiers ' (3).

The Portuguese were also recruited in the army
of the East India Company, but their status and pay were
different from those of other European soldiers. There
was in fact a classification of soldiers on the basis
of the '' Europeans" , who used to draw Rs 10 per month,
and the "' Portuguese'' , who were paid only half the

amount (4).

e e e -——————————_——_——————————_——-———————-—————— e — — o

(1§Gonsultations, 24 October 1737.

€2 idem, 26 August 1740, _
%) Letter of Waltber Clavell, dated 15 Dec.1676 to

Strynsham Master, Home liiscellaneous Seéries, yg,q 17
(4) Consultations, 25 Feb. 1723,

EEEN »
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The most formideble opposition to the English
in the early stages of their settlement in India came
from the Dutch. The Dutch East India Company, united
and re-organized in 1602, began with spectacular
success in the East, The enormous hold which the
Dutch had established in the commerce of the Indies
made them an object of imitation by other European
Companies. Their success in war with the Portuguese
brought them tremendous prestige and placed at their
disposal stores, ammunition, vessels, merchandise and
factories which they céuld readily use to great
advantage.

In Bengal the Dutch had prosperous centres of
trade at Chinsura, Kasimbazar and Patna. Alexeander
Hamilton who came to Bengal in 1705-08 attested to
the prosperity of Chinsura which he described as the
'' geat of the Dutch emporium" . He spoke of the
large factory walled high with brick, the factors
having '"" a good many houses standing pleasantly on
the river side '' (1).

The decline of Dutch power in Europe which
began in the latter half of the seventeenth century.

(1) Hamilton, 'A New Account of the East Indies',
edited by Foster, Vol. II, p.11.
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was soon reflected in the position of the Company in
India. After 1700 the Dutch began to fall rapidly
behind the English, and a quite unnecessary ostentation
and corruption ultimately led to the extinction of
their position as a political and commercial power
in Bengal and in the rest of India. Hamilton had
noticed the extensive debauchery practised by the Dutch
at their settlement at Baranagar on the Hugli (1).
Unable to face successfully the competition of the
English and the French in the eighteenth century, the
Dutch East India Company tried to retain their hold
on the imagination of potential investors by continuing
to pay dividends by means of artificial accounting
and even by borrowing (2).

By the display of their wealth the Dutch in
India managed to conceal for a long time the rotten
condition of the Company. Stavorinus, recording his

(1) Hamilton, 'A New Account of the East Indies',
edited by Foster, Vol. II, p.11.

(2) Day, 'History of Coumerce', pp.19% - 97;
Macpherson, 'History of European Commerce with

" India' ’ ppo 70 5 710
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observations, in 1768-1771, wrote that the trade of
the Dutch Company in the empire of Hindustan had,from
time to time, been encouraged with such extraordinary
privileges as if they were the natives of the countr&,
or even more (1). But this claim could be made only
for the English Company after the grant of
Farrukhsiyar's farman. By 1717 the Dutch, in fact,
were left far behind the English as a commercial power
in India.

A comparison of the position of the two
Companies in the early eighteenth century will
ﬁndoubtedly establish the superior position of the
English. While the Dutch could never obtain a
commutation of duties payable to the Government in any
part of India and had to pay 2% per cent on their trade
at Hugli and at Surat, the English were 1o pay the
Government consolidated sums of Rs 75,000 and Rs 10,000
only per annum at these portis respectively. This
undoubtedly put the English Company in an advantageous
position.

In Bengal the Dutch held the towns of Chinsura
and Barahagar on lease, while the English held the more
important towns of Calcutta, Subanati and Govindpur as

(1) Stavorinus, 'Voyages in the East Indies',
Yel. III, D.102.
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zamindars. The Dutch were to receive justice from

the officers of the Government in recovering the
advances made to the weavers and dyers, while in the
case of the English justice was to be administered by
the Englishmen themselves (1). These privileges
enormously raised the power and affluence of the English
Company who steadily ousted the Dutch from their

spheres of influence.

Since the English Revolution of 1688 and the
accession of William III on the throne of England, the
Dutch and the English Bast India Compenies, despite
their commercial rivalry,generally acted in co-operation
in matters of commom interest in India. From here,
the Dutch inferiory becomes evident in their attitude,
as may be seen from the correspondence between the
heads of the two Companies with regard to the return
of deserters in 1724. The English accused the Dutch
of being '' unnecessarily quarrelsome and troublesome'' ,
while the Dutch protested in reply that the English
treated them ''with little respect'' (2).
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(1) Farrukhsiyar's Farman of 1717,
(8) Consultations, 1/ September 172k.
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In spite of occasional bitterness and trade
rivalry'in important articles of export like saltpetre
and silk, the Dutch generally joined with the English
in trying to keep out other European rivals. They
were no less opposed than the English to the
establishment of the hold of the Ostend Company in

Bengal.

Compared with the Dutch, the French who had
built up important trade settlements in the lower
Ganges were more active and aggressive and potentially
appeared as formidable rivals of the English. The
efforts of the French to establish contact with Bengal
date from 1674, when Shaista Khan, the Viceroy,
permitted them to have settlements in some commercial
centres of the province. The permission to build
houses and factories at Chandernagare was obtained from
Ibrahim Khan in 1690. It was not till 1693 that the
French succeeded in obtaining a farman from the
Emperor Aurangzib with permission to trade in Bengal,
Bihar and Orissa on the same terms as the Dutch, Since
the privileges granted to the French did not exceed

those enjoyed by the Dutch, they accordingly stood on
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inferior terms in Bengal compared with the English.
But the increasing importance of the position of the
French during the first forty years of the eighteenth
century is revealed by the fact that the records of
the English often distinguish them as among '' the
three European nations trading in the province'' .
‘Besides Chanderaggore,the French factories at Kasimbazar;.
Patna and Dacca were important centres of trade.

Events in Europe naturally influenced the
attitude of the three European settlements in their
dealings with one another in Bengal. While the co-
operation of the Dutch was generally accorded to the
English, the French acted differently. Neither in
policy towards the Ostenders nor in regard to the
deserters were the French willing to extend a helping
hand to the English. For example, an Ostender, who
was brought to Balasore by a French ship in June 1725,
was denied passage up the river by the Dutch (1).

By 173%0 the French in Bengal became so0 prosperous
that even the English East India Company, when short
of funds, had little hesitation in borrowing money
from them at Chandernagore. In July 1729, the English

(1) Consultations, 21 June 1725.
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in Calcutta, not having received the expected
remittance of bullion from Fort St.George and being

in want of twenty-five chests to supply the Patna
factory, borrowed Rs 200,000 from the French Director
at Chandernagore (1). In 1731, during the conflict
between Shuja Khan and the English, the Nawab invited
a party of Frenchmen at lMurshidaebad to '' treat with
the Government and adjust their trade " (2). 1In 1732,
the French successfully resisted the demand made Dby
the English for the presentation of passports by the
French ships entering the river (3%). The extensive
purchase of silk on a large scale by the French at
Jagdéa in eastern Bengal, in 17%2-53 not merely raised
the price of that article but made its procurement by
the.English difficult (4). The French also became a
serious rival with the Dutch in the purchase of saltpetre

at Patna (5H).

1 Consultations, 17 July 1729.

2 idem, 17 October 1731,

2 idem, 27 April 1732.

( idem, 17 duly 1733; 19 March 1733,
(h) idem, { March 1734%; 7 April 1735.
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The three European Companies were united in
their opposition to the purchase of saltpetre by the
Government or the novles in high position and later
selling it to them., The English issued strict
instructions to their factors at Patna not to buy
any petre from the Government (1)and entered into a
tripartite agreement with the Dutch and the French
to frustrate the designs of the Government in this
direction (2). The agreement was effectively pursued
by the three Companies even against such a formidable
purchaser as Haji Ahmed, the foremost nobleman at
Murshidabad during the administration of Shuja Khan (3),
But the agreement with the French was short lived. In
May 1738, the English Council in Calcutta were informed
that the French chief was purchasing saltpetre
independently. Though the English and the Dutch lost
no time in re-affirming their old agreement, the
competition of the French raised the price considerably(4).
Later, when Dupleix, the French chief at Chandernagore,
himself proposed an agreement , the English, in view of
the changed circumstances, politely declined to be

drawn into it (5).

1) Consultations, 17 July 1736.

2). idem, 22 July 173%6.
3 idem, 4y August 1737; 9 September 1737.°
(L idem, 15 lay 1738.

(5 idem, 4 December 1738.



(128)

The relations between the English and the French
were often embittered on accountlof the deserters from
their respective factories and the ill treatment
accorded to the inhabitants of Calcutta and Chandernagore
when captured by the disputing parties. Dupleix, in
1754, took exception to the remarks of the English who
condemned the action of the French in whipping with
a chabuk (whip) a ''black fellow'' because he had
taken four days on his passage from Calcutta to
Chandernagore, a distance of about twenty miles only.
He further alleged that if the French should complain
concerning all the inhabitants whom the English caused
to be chastised at Calcutta, they would tire the
patience of the latter (1).

~ In December 1736, Hugh Barker, Chief of the
English factory at Kasiﬁbazar, OB being dismissed from
the Company's service on charges of dishonesty and
misconduct, suddenly disappeared from Calcutta, The
Dutch and even the Ostend Company categorically denied
his presence in their factories. The French chief,
Dupleix, on the other hand, not merely gave an evasive
answer in rebly to the enquiries made by the English,

(1) Consultations, 23j December 1734,
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buﬁ added that if Barker should come and demand the
protection of the French flag, he could not and would
not refuse it to him (1). Barker succeeded in eluding
the vigilance of the English and crossed over to
Europe in a French ship (2).

The English, in similar circumstances, generally
tried to accommodate the French claims. In 1739 an
English pilot named Charles dohns had surreptitiously
brought to Calcutta several bags of dollars belonging
to the French Company. Thomas Braddyll, the President
of Fort Williem, immediately on receipt of the
information, sent a guard and secured the culprit. The
money stolen consisted of %327 whole dollars and 64k
pieces of half and quarter dollars altogether
amounting to Rs 8477 Sicca. It was decided to make
over the whole amouant to the French and keep the man
in confinement for further enquiry and examination (3).
Dupleix conveyed his thanks to the English for the
money which the French had thus recovered (4). The
English were generally willing to deliver up deserters

on the basis of reciprocity (5).

(1) Consultationg, 5 January 1737.
2 idem, 26 Februayyi/3/.
3 idem, 19 June 1739.

I idem, 21 June 1739.

5 idem, 25 April 1740.
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The French had immensely improved their position
in Bengal by the end of the year 1737. They were given
a parwana (licence) by the Nawab which obtained for them
the clearance of the Arcot rupees. They were further
promised a sanad (a grant or patent) for having the
use of the mint to coin their Arcot rupees on the same
terms as those of the Dutch for which they had to pay
Rs 50,000 (1).

But important as the French were growing in
Bengal, their stake in the country was much less than
that of the English., When Patna was threatened by an
inroad of the Marathas in 1738, Dupleix at the
beginning proposed that the chiefs of the three
European Companies at Patna should unite and act
conjointly in case of an invasion (2). The French
wanted/igztthree chiefs should specifically accept the
condition that each of the settlements would be obliged
to protect and_secure with all their forces the persons
and effects of»the others against the violence of the
Marathas (3). Before agreeing to the proposal the
English wanted an assurance that the French and the

Dutch would send the same number of European forces to

2 idenm, .30 July 1738,

§1 Consultations, 29 December 1737.
3 idem, 31 July 1738.
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Patna as those employed by the English, failing which
they must be prepared to share an egual proportion of
the expenses (1). But feeling that the English had
the most to gain, neither the French nor the Dutch
would agree to share equally the burden of defending
the factories with the English. They were, on the
other hand, anxious to provide for a possible retreat
(2). The crisis was, however,  averted as the liarathas
did not advance to Patna (3).

Once the danger was over, the French tried to
capture the market at Patna for broad cloth, and the
English had to take special precautions against the
imitation of their goods and underselling them in the
- market (4). The French also raised the price of cowries
(small shells used as medium of exchange) at Balasore
by meking extensive purchases on cash payment.(5H)

Despite all the efforts of Dupleix to raise the
power and prestige of the French in Bengal, they lagged

far behind the English as a commercial factor in the

(1) Comsultations, 31 July 1738.

(2 idem, 7 August 1738.
zz idem, 20 September 1738
( idem, 22 October 1739
(H idem, 30 July 1739.
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table showing the arrival and departure of ships to

and from Calcutta in 1740

Ships arrived

(152)

English: French: Others

January
February
lMarch
April
May

June
July
August
Sepiember
October
November

December

Ships sailed

This will be evident from the following

English: French: Others
1 3 9(lioors)
9 1 |
y
2 2 2(Dutch)
2
3 1
2 1
5 8 3(Moors)
38 16 1h (1)

(1) Consultations,

1 1
N
6 1(Dutch)
2 A(Dutch)
6 2  2(Moors)
7 4(Moors)
2 5
3 4  H(Moors
5 2
4 3  1(Moors)
2 2
42 20 14
Vol. XIV.
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The Royal Company of Denmark, originally formed
in 1612, had established their settlement at Tranguebar,
about 140 miles south-west of Madras, in 1616. Two
Danish ships arrived near Balasore in June, 1673. In
1676 ,the Danes obtained permission from Nawab Shaista
Khan of Bengal to build a factory on the bank of the
Hugli. They tried to secure a farman to trade duty - free
in Bengal like the English, but were unsuccessful. Their
position grew worse when they alienated Murshid Kuli Khan
in 1714,  The relations between the Gover:d ument end
the Danes had become so bitter that they were forced
to leave their factories in December, 171k,

While the Danes were preparing to proceed down
the river, a message from lMurshidaebad was received by
Robeft Hedges, the Chief of the English Company in
Calcutta. Hedges was requested to.use his good offices
to settle the dispute between the Government and the
Danes (1). Three members of the Calcutta Council,
namely Samuel Feake, Johm Deane and Henry Frankland,
and also Captain Osborne of the ship 'Hanover' were
accordingly deputed to meet Attrup, the Chief for Affairs
of the Royal Company of Denmark, on board his ship and
find out a basis for reconciliation (2). The Danes were

———————— - —— W — ——_— - — - - - — -~ — - t— - o—— - — - — - ————— o ————— - -

(1) Consultations, 10 December 171%4
idem, 17 December 171k,
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requested to postpone their departure from Bengal
for two or three months more, during which time they
might expect to have their farman from the Government
with the help of Murshid Kuli Khan himself. Attrup,
the Danish chief, however, declared that he could no
longer put any confidence on the proposals of the
Diwan and preferred to leave Bengal, lest he might be
deceived once more by those who 'had proved themselves
false so often' (1).

The Danish factories on the Hugli were thus
abandoned in 1714. It was not till 1755 that the
Danes re-established themselves at Serampore with the

permission of Nawab Ali Wardi Khan.

Since the English placed the interests of their
commerce above every other consideration, the arrival
of any foreign ship in the Hugli made them nervous.
The arrival of stréy ships flying the Polish, Swedish
and Danish colours from time to time made them fear a
potential rival and adopt adeguate measures to prevent
these ships trading in the country. What they considered
to be the greatest menace to their hold on the Bengal
trade came from the Ostend Company, the outcome of the

(1) Consultations, 21 December 171k4.
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ambition of the Flemish merchants and of the Emperor
Charles VI of Austria, the ''ungrateful ally of England
in the war of Spanish succession''. The meteoric
career of the Ostend Company is perhaps the most
important single event in the history of commercial
enterprises in Bengal in the earlier half of the
eighteenth century.

The merchants of Flanders had long been dreaming
of having a share in the profits of the eastern trade.
Since the peace of Utrecht they had, in the Emperor
Charles VI, a ruler and patron who was no less anxious
to encourage his subjects of the newly acquired Low
Countries to build up a mercantile marine which might
form the nucleus of an imperial fleet. The early
attempts of these merchants resulted in the sporadic
arrival of some ships in the Bay of Bengal which caused
a sensation among the European traders already in the
field, and precautionary measures were adopted to prevent
the native merchants from trading with the so called
interlopers (1). These ships were manned by an
experienced crew recruited from among the deserters
and dismissed servants of the English and Dutch
companies and other adventurers in the East (2). Their

1) Consultations 18 June 1719; 30 October 1720
idem 24 October 1721.
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previous knowledge of the lands was an asset freely
used against their former euployers and associates.
The English East India Company was from the
beginning fully prepared to meetAthe situation. In
a letter dated 24 December, 1718, Samuel Feake, the
President of Fort William, assured the authorities in
England that no one under their protection, white or
black, would be allowed to assist the interlopers in
any way and that any delinguents would be severely
punished (1). When one such ship under the Emperor's
colours passed by Fort William in June, 1723, the
Calcutta Council by public notice forbade all persons
under their protection to go aboard the ship or ' to
have any trade or commerce or to hold any correspondence,
on any pretence whatsoever with any persons belonging
to her ', so that ''no one might plead ignorance''.
Representation was immediately made to the darbar at
Murshidabad declaring that the English Company would
not be answerable for any misdemeanour or outrages the
new comers might commit in the Moghul's dominions (2).
In spite of the bitter opposition of the English
gnd the Dutch, the Emperor, in August 1723, formally
and publicly ammounced the grant of a charter to the

(1) India Office Record Department, Bengal Letters
Received, Vol, 1. : "
(2) Consultations, 22 June 1723.
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Ostend Company authorizing them to trade in the East
Indies, Murshid Kuli Khan, the Nawab of Bengal,.ever
alert against the acquisition of too much influence
by aby foreign power, preferred to have a competitive
market for the different European settlements in
Bengal. The Ostenders had little difficulty in getting
the Nawab's permission to build a factory at
Bankibazar, about fifteen miles from Calcutta on the
eastern side of the Hugli. The Company built another
factory ai Kasimbazar which was then the foremost
commercial centre for foreigners in Bengal.

The success of the Company, immediately after
the commencement of its business in Bengal,was almost
phenomenal. Unscrupulous in its methods, the Company
resérted to smuggling on a large scale. The rich
dividends that were paid even at this early stage
captured the imagination of speculators and adventurers.
A runaway English adventurer, named Alexander Hume, was
appointed head of the & Qs factory at Bankibazar (1).
Bold in his conceptions, he was no less daring in his
methods. The brisk trade carried on by the Pstenders
under his leadership united all the European settlements
in Bengal against them. Even the French, who had helped
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(1) Consultations, 5 September 1726.



(138)

the Ostend ships in their early voyages (1), joined
the English and the Dutch in denouncing the Company L2).

Short as the career of the Ostend Company was,
it formed the subject of prolonged discussion in the
affairs of the English East India Company both in
Englend and in Bengal. In 1726, the English factors at
Balasore complained about the ''extensive purchase of
- cowries by the Ostenders at a comparatively high price
(8). The chief of the English factory at Dacca made
an appeal for an extra supply of moneyhto obstruct the
Ostenders who were making extensive investments there
(4). The Ostenders also recruited influentisl men from
among the Moslem nobility as their agents in important
markets (5).

Unable to check the progress of the Ostend
Company in Bengal by open and straightforward means,
the English took recourse to guestionable tactics.
Assured of indemnification by the Secret Committee of
the East India Company in London in any measure, the

————--——-—-—--———-——_———-——-———_.—————————————.—.—--—————-_

21§ Consultations, 2 June 1725.
2) The Treaty of Seville, 1729.

E Consultations, 3 October 1726.
idem, 10 October 1726
5 idem, 16 October 1727.
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English in Bengal might adopt against the Ostenders,
Henry Frankland, President of Fort William,and Edward
.Stephemson of the Calcutta Council addressed a joint
letter to the Committee, on 27 January 1727, in which
they gave an account of what they had done so far and
added that they had gone to such lengths in their
efforts to attain their object as were " not so
proper to be committed to black and white'' (1). They
had by stratagem tried to seize the person of Hume.
They along with the Dutch were ceaseless in their
efforts to alienate the French against the Ostenders
and to win over the powerful support of the faujdar
(governor) of Hugli with & view to influencing Murshid
Kuli Khan against their new rivals (2).

| Hearing that the Ostenders had offered to the
Nawab Rs 100,000 to have his permission to build a
factory and to pay customs like the Dutch, the English
and the Dutch sent a petition to the Wawab through the
faujdar of Hugli that they would pay him Rs 125,000 to
have the Ostenders sent out of Bengal. The allied
Companies were prepared to pay as much as Rs 200,000
in case they were assured that '' the lMoors would stand

to their words and perform what they promised'' (3).

1) I.O.Records Department: Bengal Letters received,Vol. I.
: idemn, Letter dated 27 January, 1727.
idem, Letter dated 13 February 1727.
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The secret letters regarding the Ostenders
despatched from Calcutta to London throw some light
on the character of the lMoslem nobility in Bengal as
revealed to the English at the time. ' Mahomedans'',
they stated, ''will take money oh both sides, and what
is given today is forgot tomarrow'' . As no trust
could be placed on their Moslem patrons, the English
and the Dutch in Bengal excited their countrymen at
home to go to the extent of having a war with the
Emperor so that they might take arms and drive the
Ostenders out of Bengal (1).

In spite of all the efforts of the English
to win over Fatehchand, the riéh financier and confidant
of the Nawab, and the darbar against the Ostend
Comﬁany, the Nawab, on receipt of a lakh of rupees
from the Ostenders,prouised them to secure the King's
farman for building a factory and for trading in Bengal
on the same footing as the Dutch and the French, They
were to pay a further sum of Rs H0,000 when they would
actually receive the grants (2). But delay in having
the privileges, partly on acéount of the failing health
Oof Murshid Kuli Khan, made the Ostenders restless and
disgusted, They began to leave their factory house at
Saidabad near Kasimbazar, Their only reward was to
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(1) I.0.Records, Bengal Letters Received, Vol.I.
Letter dated 10 Feoruary 1727,
(2) Consultations, 22 May 1727.
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have a Seerpaw, for which they had deposited Rs 70,000
with Fatehchand (1).

All the time the English were unsparing in their
endeavour to possess the Government with an " ill
opinion of the Ostenders'' (2) and to prevail on the
mutasaddis (clerks) at the darbar to make the parwana
previously obtained by them ineffective (3). On the
death of Murshid Kuli Khan, the English merchants at
Kasimbazar assured the Council in Calcutta that they
would maeke the best use of the change of Government
t0 create an opinion in favour of the East India
Company and prejudice the interests of the Ostenders (4).
None the less, the Ostenders continued to make
purchases at Kasimbazar and at Dacca on a large scale (5).

Early in 1728, news reached the English in
Calcutta about the preliminaries of a treaty signed at
Vienna between the Emperor and the maritime powers by
which the privilege granted to the Ostenders to trade
in the Bast Indies would be made inoperative for seven

years (6). But there was no lessening of the Ostend

1) Consultations, H June 1727.
A idem, 12 June 1727.
2 idem, 12 dJuly 1/27/.
: idem, 17 July 1727/.
5 idem, 31 July 1/7/27; 14 August 1727.
6 idem. 1 April 1728.
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activities either at Murshidabad or at Dacca (1).
In fact the knowledge of the temporary abandonment
of the Company by Charles VI did little to stifle
enterprise at Ostend or in the centres of trade in
Bengal. The consultations of the Calcutta Council
of 30 June, 1729, record that the Ostenders at
Kasimbazar had prized and weighed off from their
merchants more than two thousand maunds (2004 mds.
28 seers.8 chittacks) of silk and were making new
cobtmets with their merchants (2).

The British and the Dutch Companies were now
determined to uproot the Ostenders entirely from
Bengal. The Secret Committees of the English and the
Dutch Companies set up in Europe for this purpose
were in correspondence with the men on the spot in Bengal
to devise meéns as to the surest and quickest way to
carry out their aims., The gravity of the situation and
the importance attached to it by the Council in
Calcutta are evident from the fact that the negotiations
which henceforth took place between the English and
the Dutch Councils and the account of their activities
with regard to the Ostenders were not recorded in the
ordinary Copsultation Book of Fort William but in a
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21 Consultations, 13 May 1728, and 8 July 1728.
idem, 50 June, 1729.
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separate volume kept for the purpose. Pending the
final agreement between the two Companies in Bengal,
the English ordered Captain Richard liicklefield and
Captain Gosfright to ' get their ships in a posture
of defence in order to éeize or destroy any ships
belonging to the Ostenders’(1). While the vakil
(attorney acting with authority) of the Ostenders was
busy at Murshidabad complaining against the conduct
of the English end the Dutch (2), the Council in
Calcutta commissioned the two ships, namely, the

"' Fordwick' , Captain Richard Gosfright, and the

'' Duke of'York?', Captain Jonathan Sommers, to be
in special service against the Ostenders (3).

On 23 Septehber 1729, John Deane, the Governor
of Fort William, formally placed his seal on a secret
treaty made with the Dutech to act Jointly and combine
their forces in everything that might tend to the
detriment of the Ostenders and the ruin of their trade
in Bengal. By this treaty the English and the Dutch

undértook to capture the Ostend ships then in the Hugli (4).

(1) Consultations (Special Volume vI)
20 July, 1729.
%2 idenm, 4 August 1729,
3 idem, (Special Volume VII), 11 August 1729,
(4 idenm, idem . 22 September 1729
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While the English Captains, Gosfright and Sommers,
took position to capture the two ships believed to
belong to the Ostenders, namely, the ''Sea Horse'' and
" Neptune'' , which were then in the Hugli, it was
represented to the Council in Calcutta that the two
ships belonged to a merchant of Poland and had '' the
King of Poland’s"pass'" . The Captains of the ships
protested against the»reported designs of the English
and the Dutch to attack and destroy the ships on the
ground that ''neither His Britannic Majesty nor any
other Prince or State whatsoever had at any time called
in question His Polish Majesty's right to send ships
with his passport to India' (1). The English and the
Dutch did not give any credence to the story of this
Polish connection of the ships, because the ships on
their arrival had given a different account to Shuja
Khan, the Nawab of Bengal, who had acknowledged them
as Ostend ships (2);

A representation was also made to the darbar
about the designs of the English and the Dutch to stop
the Ostend shipping in Bengal. The Nawab appeared to
take exception to the conduct of the allied Companies

é1; Consultations (Special Volume VII), 2 October 1729.
idem, idem, 27 October 1729.



(145)

and ordered a gursbandar (mace-bearer) to demand an
undertaking of the English and other Europeans as well
not to commit any acts of hostility (1).

The capture of thé Ostend sloop coming from
the Coromondal Coast, on 15 September 1729, by Captain
Richard Gosfright, with the help of the Dutch, was
regarded by the English as unjustified according to
the terms of  iastructions given him. The sloop was
accordingly released. But this act of open hostility
to the Ostenders, on the part of the English, had
temporarily embittered the relations of the East India
Company with the darbar and had the effect of putting
a stop to the movement of the English boats at
Murshidabad. On the release of the sloop, however,
nofmal relations were restored (2).

The petition,which the English presented to
Nawab Shuja Khan to have the gursbardar recalled,
stated how they had previously warned the darbar about
the character of the Ostenders and the ill conseguences
which might result if they were permitted to establish
themselves in Bengal. Their conduct in imprisoning the
merchants and extorting large sums of money from them

(1 Consultations, 4 November 1729.
idem, 18 November 1729
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had proved how the misgiving of the English on the
score of the Ostenders was justified. They pointed
out that they had traded in the country for upwards
of one hundred years and had been obedient to all the
Subahs by whose favour they had carried on the
Company's business., They assured the Nawab that they
would bé ever faithful end obedient to his commands
and that they would not molest or trouble the Ostenders
in Bengal, ' but at the proper place where the
Europeans are used to fight, they would account with
them'' (1). The Nawab was at last prevailed upon
by the English and the Dutch vakils to recall the
gursbardar on condition that the allied Companies
would undertake not to molest the Ostenders while they
were under his jurisdiction (2).

Negotiations were now started at the darbar
to win over the Nawab and persuade him to expel the
Ostenders from Bengal. In the tripartite talks of
the English and the Dutch with the Government, it was
proposed by Alamchand and Haji Ahmed, the two
representatives of the Nawab, that the Nawab would
engage to drive the Ostenders out of the country on

the following terms :-

(1) Consultations(Special Vol.VII) Noveumber 1729.
¢ (No date) - Bbns following 16 Nov., 1729
(2) Consultations, 16 November, 172J.
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(a) That the allied Compeanies would let the
Ostend ships pass unmolested till they were
quite out of sight of the lMoghul's country.

(b) That the allied Compenies would pay the
sum of Sicca RS 124,000, which Fatehchand had
received of the Ostenders at the time of their
first settlement, besides 122 gold mohars (gold

coins), make a nuzeranna (payment of present

mede in acknowledgment of some grant) to the
King of Hindustan and give a handsome present
to the Nawab,

It was further proposed,on behalf of the Companies,
that if the Nawab would promise and consent to take no
notice of any attack made by the allied Companies on
the Ostend ships and ' stand entirely neutar'', they
would privately pay him another sum of money. He would
also have to give an assurance that, snould the Ostend
ships at any time return, he would never permit them to
carry on trade in this country (1).

Instructions were issued to the representatives
of the two Companies at Kasimbazar to ascertain
'underhand'' as to the sum of money which would satisfy
the Nawab for the above purpose (2).
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21 Consultations (Special Vol.VII),November,1729, i.
2 idem.
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The English at this time felt so cautious
about the Ostenders that when the guestion of
dismissing the supernumerary forces engaged in
guarding their boats from Patna to Calcutta came up
for consideration they decided to discharge only
the ''black'' soldiers and keep all the Europeans,
lest.the latter should reinforce the Ostend army
which would then be of great detriment to their
affairs (1).

That the relation between Nawab Shuja Khan
and the allied Companies had improved is evident
from the answer which the Nawab gave to the Ostend
chief when he prayed that a Government officer should
be deputed to escort his ships up to Puri (on the
coaét of Orissa) to save them from molestation by

the English and the Dutch, for which he offered a

nuzeranna of Rs 25,000. The Nawab stated that having
enjoined both the English and the Dutch not to molest
the Ostenders in this country, where he was resolved to
keep peace and tranquillity, he had no reason to suspect
disobedience of the allied Companies to his orders and
that he was unable to do eanything more in this matter, (2)

(1) Consultations, 15 December, 1729.
(2) idem 18 November, 1729.
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The situation seeméd to take a turn for the
worse, from the point of view of the English and the
Dutch, when they were informed from Kasimbazar that the
Nawab was firmly resolved that no attack should be made
on Ostenders before they had passed Puri. He was,
however, willing not to permit them to return to Bengal,
provided the following sums were paid to him by the
allied Companies, namely, (&) Rs 124,000 and 122 gold
mohars which the Ostenders had deposited with
Fatehchand and which he would return, (b) Rs 450,000
for the King and himself. The Nawab's demends would
altogether amount to about Rs 600,000 (1).

When the attitude of the Nawab came to their
knowledge, the Dutch were inclined to let the Ostend
ships pass unmolested, but the English were determined
not to recede from the terms'of the secret treaty of
2) September, 1729, in the minutest detail. The English
having kept their ships on strategic points at great
eéxpense were resolved to stand firm and not to give way
at that juncture, They ultimately succeeded in winning
over the Dutch to their view and issued instructions to

the subordinate factories as to what they should do in

(1) Consultations, (Special Vol.VII), 24 Deceumber, 1729,
idem , idem » 27 December, 1729,
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The Kasimbazar Council were asked to act
vigorouély and to keep themselves in constant touch
with the darbar. The Nawab, a few days later,
lowered his demands, and the English were informed by
'aperson of note at the darvar' that the matter might
be settled within. Rs 400,000 (1). The Gouncil inm
Calcutta instructed John Stackhouse, the chief of the
Kasimbazar factory, to act in co-operation with the
Dutch and not to stand on unnecessary ceremonies (2).

The Nawab, sometimes friendly and sometimes
hostile; intimidated the English into making immediate
payment, if they were to be spared his wrath. Ali-Wardi
Khan, who presumably was the 'man of note' referred to
in the previous communication from Kasimbézar, ‘was
reported to have said that the English by their non-
'compliance to agree to their proposal 'had made hiﬁ
lose his character' (3). The dread of a war with the
Nawab ultimately compelled the English to agree to
offer Rs 400,000 jointly with the Duteh, but they, on

their part, were resolved to attack the Ostend ships (4).

Consultations (Special Vol.VII), 2P January,1730.
ibid, . 4 Jdenuary,1730.
Consultations, 24 January, 1730,
iden, (Speeial Vol.VII), 19 January,1750.
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A settlement was at last reached with the Nawab
for Rs 325,00Q, " on condition that they (the allied
Companies) migh; attack the Ostend ships between the
mouth of the river and Juggernaut (Puri), whether
they had victory or not, that the Ostend factory
shall be raised and they obliged to Yeave it or
permitted so to do of their own accord' (41). The
Nawab also undertook never again to permit the Ostenders
to resettle in Bengal on any consideration (2).

Immediately following the first intimation
about this treaty received in Calcutta on 2) January
1750, came a letter from Captain Richard Gosfright of
the ' Fordwick'' informing the Council in Calcutta of
the capture of a small Ostend ship on 22 January, 1730 (3).
The name of the ship which was sailing under the Polish
colours was 'Saint Theresa', She was kept in Cdl cutta
and her crew'sent to EurOpé.

The bill of lading of this ship, though ' very
inconsiderable'', gives an indication of the commodities
in which the Ostenders carried on their trade. Altogether
there were :-

(1) Consultations, 24 January, 1730.

2 idem, 26 January, 1730,
idem, (Special Vol.VII), 24 January,1730.
dden, 2-Feobruary--47-50
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'" 534 Bags of Turmeric

i 100 Bags of Cowries
360 Bags of Saltpetre
22 Bags of Stick Lac

1016  Bags
125 Pieces of Red wood
200 Bundles of Rattams.' (1)

The capture of the ship 'Saint Theresa' seemed
to have fulfilled the immediate object of the allied
Companies. The Dutch were anxious to release their
ships engaged in blockading the mouth of the Ganges
and, in view of the stormy weather, they wanted to
post the ships in other stations (2). The English also
would prefer to withdraw the military engaged in the
area so as to diminish the great expenses to which they
were put to make the blockade effective (3).

Alexander Hume, the renegade Englishman, who
was the Governor of the Ostend factory protested to the
Nawab against the conduct of the allied Companies, In a

letter to Haji Ahmed he remonstrated that depending on

the word of the Nawab as well as in compliance with his

iden, # February,1730.

(1 Consultations (Special,Vol.VII), 24 January,'17§o,
idem, (Sp&Ciﬂl,VOl.VII), 26 January’ 1750.
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order he had sent away the Ostend ship which..the
English and the Duteh captured and plundered taking
away cloth and goods to the amount of some‘lakhs of
rupees and divided the same as spoil among themselves,,
He condemned the action of the English and the Dutch
as a ''piece of impudence' and ''so flagrant an
affront to the Nawab ''. (1).

The English Coﬁpany celebrated the victory over
the Ostenders by sanctioning four months' bounty money
for the officers and sea men belonging to the 'Fordwick',
the 'Princes Caroline Galley', and the 'Duke of York', =
which were engaged in the exﬁedition against the ;
Ostenders (2). The total sum spent on this account
was Rs 10,3%15=-2-9 (3).

From this time onward the Ostend competition as
a serious menace to the East India Company's trade
disappeared. The Ostend Coq:Pany evidently was in no
position to fight. The Ostenders, either had to reach
a compromise with the English and the Dutch or retire.
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(1) Consultations (Special Vol.VII), .2 Februspy 1730.
22 idem, 13 July and 9 September 1730.

3) Rs 4107-13-0 for the men of the 'Fordwick' while
those of the 'Princess Caroline Galley' and the
'Duke of York' received Rs 1932-5H-6 and Rs 4275-0-3
respectively. -
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Presumably they had aslready ' shot their bolt'' .Towards
the end of September 1730, there was but one '' Emperor's
ship'' of about thirty guns in‘the Balasore érea, '
which also sailed out of Balasore RoAad in the beginning
of October. Alexander Hume, the Ostend chief, took

his passage for Europe on board a French ship before

the end of the year 1730 (1).

Though fhe English and the Dutch continued to
act together with regard to the Ostenders, the position
was considered safe enough by the English East India
Company to diminish the extraordinary military expenses
on account of the Ostenders in Bengal and to revert to
the Company's military establishment as it stood in
1725 (2).

" On 12 July 1731, the Council in Calcutta decided
to write off the extraordinary charges of the military
amounting to Rs 28,430-10-3 on account of the expedition
against the Ostenders (3).

On 21 December 1730, the Council in Calcutta
received from Kasimbazar a parwana on the faujdar of
Hugli not to allow the Ostenders staying longer in the

country on any account and to turn them away by force(k).

P ———————— el

1) Consultations, 7 December 1730.

2 idem.
2 idem, 12 July, 1731.
idem, 21 December, 1750.
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Before this order could be fully carried out, fresh
trouble had occurred in October, 1731, when Schonamilli,
the new Ostend chief, put up the Ostend ship 'Neptune',
which was then lying at Bankibazar to public sale (1).
The English at once decided to intercede with the
 faujdar of Hugli to prohibit this sale and to remind
the Nawab of his former promises to drive the Ostenders
out. It was further agreed that neither the English
nor the Dutch would purchase the ship, and a letter was
addressed to the French desiring them not to interfere
in the matter (2). After some dispute with the darbar
in which both sides accused the other of the non-
fulfilment of their obligations, the Nawab, in January
1752, assured John Stackhouse, the English chief at
Kasimbazar, that he would order the Ostenders to quit
the country directly and take their passage in a French
ship.(3) Once again a copy of a parwana addressed to
the faujdar of Hugli to turn the Ostenders out of the
country was forwarded from Kasimbazar to the Council

in Calcutta (4).

1) Consultations, 15 October, 173%1.
2 idem.

5 idem, 11 January, 1732.
4 idem, 17 January, 1732,
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An Ostend ship was reported to B€ hovering
around Goa in June, 1732 (1), but it was not seriously
regarded,

Between April 1752 and January 1732, a sum of
Rs 23064-14-3 was deposited in the English Company's
Cash, being the sale proceeds of the sundries taken
from the Ostenders in November, 1730 (2).

Af'ter 1751,the Ostend Company,for all practical
- purposes,ceased to cause any consternation among the
European traders in Bengal. The recognition of the
Pragmatic Sanction by Great Britain and Holland by the
Second Treaty of Vienna, concluded with the Emperor in
March 1731, introduced a definite change in international
politics. By the terms of this treaty the Emperor
bound himself to suppress the Ostend Company. The only
right reserved to the Company was '" to send two ships,
each only for one voyage, to India, and to receive the
merchandize to be imported by them, and sell the same,
as they should think proper, at Ostend" (3).

Following instructions from Londomn, the English
East India Company henceforth relaxed the severity so
long practised by the guard ships of the English at the
mouth of the Ganges to watch the mévement of the Ostend

—--———---—-——-——————--————-——_-—-—--——————————————.—————.-———--

2} idem, 10 July, 1732.
5)Macpherson, 'History of European Commerce', p, 301,

(1§Consultations, 12 June, 1732,
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vessels, though the Company . did not permit the merchants
in its protection to have any commercial transactions
with the two Ostend ships which entered the Hugli in 1732,
namely, the 'Duke of Lorraine' and the 'Concord' (1).

The withdrawal of the guard ships from the mouth
of the river by the English aroused the protest of the
Dutch who interpreted it as an infrigement of the Anglo-
Duteh agreement of 1729 by which the two contracting
parties '' had stipulated to keep the forces on both
sides so‘long as an interloping ship gpuld be in this
river or might be expected'' (2). The withdrawal of
the English ships .. .7 thréw the whole burden of
expenses for guarding the river on the Dutch, who,
accordingly, lodged a formal protest (3).

Despite the formal revocation of the Company by
the Emperor, the Ostenders still harboured hopes of
carrying on commerce in the East. In January 1733,
Francois de Schonamilli, the Ostend Governor at
Bankibazar, demanded the restitution of the three sloops
and a yacht taken by the English and the Dutch in 1730
and 1732 (4). The English refused to restore the sloops

(1) Consultations, 26 August and 4 September, 1732;
Consultations Extraordinary, 21 September, 1752,
(2; Consultatlons, 30 October 1752.

%2 idem.

idem, 8 January, 1732.



(158)

but declared their willingness to afford the Ostenders
'all assistance usual from one nation in amity with
anotaer " (1).

In January 1754, Schonémilli sent a formal
intimation to the English at Fort William ''notifying
that the Ostend Company had given up all their factories
in the Indies to His Imperial lMajesty who had appointed
him Governor-General of Bankibazar and factories
there-on depending' (2). But the Ostend Company no
longer created any fear in the mind of the English and
the Dutch. At a joint conference at Hugli held in May
1734, the representatives of the English and Dutch
Compan_ies discussed whether they should once again
press the Nawab to force the Ostenders out of Bengal.
Unanimously, it was agreed that ' it was more advisable
to let the affair lay dormant and not to move it to
the Nawab''. One of the reasons for this decision was
that ''pressing the Nawab to this might engage him to
demand a further sum Of money and possibly might embroil
the affairs of both nations." There was also no great
inducement to invoke the help of the Nawab to expel the
Ostenders as the volume of their trade was practically
nil and they could do little harm to the English and

R ———————————————————— e e et e b ——

é1) Consultations, 7 Feoruary, 1732.
2) idem, b January, 1754.
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Dutch commerce (1). The two Companies preferred not to
make reply to the Ostend chief regarding his demand for
the restoration of the sloops and the yacht (2).

The Ostenders henceforth were of little
consequence in the economic and political history of
Bengal. Their sporadic attempt to hoist the imperial
flag at Bankibazar, in 1754, was not seriously regarded
(3); neither was the Nawab's device to cajole them at
a critical period of his gquarrel with the English in
May 17%6, given any importance by the English Company (4).

But the fear of the Ostenders continﬁed for
some time to haunt the mind of the East India Company
in Bengal. When in 1733 (5) and in 1739 (6), some
Swedish ships entered the Hugli, and again when in 1736 (7),
the banes trie@ to secure favour from the Nawab for trade
facilities in Bengal, the English East India Company did
not look upon them with friendly eyes. The Government

Consultations, 27 May, 1734.

1
2 idem.,
2 idem, 24 October, 173%4.
idem, 27 May, 1756; See Chapter®
h idem, 24 and 27 December, 1733,
3 idem, 28 August, 1739.
7 iden, 10 and 11 September, 1736.
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of Bengal also exploited this fear of the English to
extort money from them on the pretence of favouring
them against fresh European competitors (1).

But the English were not alone to blame. The
Dutch and the French shared the same feelings and were
ever eager to block the door against other nations. The
destruction of the Ostend factories at Bankibazar by
the orders of the Government in 1744 put an end to their
activities in Bengal.(2).
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1) Consultations, 26 October, 1736.
The following is a list of Ostend ships that had
been sent to Bengal between 172% and 1740 :-

o B s o A o Tt e S

Ship Year Guns .
1. The Emperor Charles 1724 30
2. The Charles the Sixth 1725 36
3. The Peace 1726 36
4. The Hope 1726 34
5. Theirchduciess; Elizabeth 1727 32
6. The Charles the Sixth 1727 e
7. The St. Theresa 1729 -
8. The Concord 1732 40
9. The Duke of Lorrain 1732 Ll

Vide, Macpherson, ''History of European

Commerce with India'', pp. 303 - Ok.
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Chapter IV

Mints and Currency

It was in the reign of Akbar that a regular
systen of currency was for the first time introduced
in Moghul India. The reform of the currency in Akbar's
reign began in 1577, when Khwaja Abdus Samad, the
celebrated painter and calligrapher,was'appointed the
master of the imperial mint at Delhi. The five
principal provincial mints of Léhore, Jaunpur,
Ahmedabad, Tanda (later shifted to Rajmahal) and Patna
were each placed under a superior imperial»official.

The administration of the Bengal mint was entrusted to
Raja Todar Mall.

Early in the reign of Shah Jahan a mint was
established in Surat. It soon became the chief mint for
Gujarat., The system of local mints which began in
Akbar's reign steadily grew in number. The total number
of places at which coins were struck, during the Moghul
rule, from Akbar to Bahadur Shah II, was about two
hundred (1).

These mints issued a variety of coins in gold,
silver and copper, of different weights and value. Gold

(1) The Imperial Gazetteer of Indla, (1907),
Vol. Iv, Pe 514,
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coins, in the later days of Akbar's reign, were struck
in four provinces only, namely, Delhi, Bengal, Ahmedabad
and Kabul. They were issued in twenty-six denominations,
but most of them were ' fancy '' and were rarely found
in circulation. The chief silver coin was the rupee
of 172% grains. In weight it was equivalent to the
British India coin of the same name at the beginning
of the present century, but its purchasing power was
about six or seven times higher than the latter. The
chief copper coin was the dam which formed the ready
money for the rich and poor alike. Forty dams were
equivalent to one rupee. Neither the silver nor the
copper coins were, as now, tokens but circulated at
the value of the metal they contained. There were thus
three independent stendards including gold. But since
gold was not generally in circulation, a bi-metallic
system of silver and copper existed in Moghul India.

In southern India, which in Akbar's time was
dominated by Hindu influence, the currency was based
on gold and called by various names as varahu or hun (1).

—_————-.—.————————————-————-————-———.—-_——-———.—————__——._—-—._-—_

(1) The term Varahu was presumably taken from the
'boar' incarnation of Vishnu. Hun was identical
with sona or gold. - Hobson-Jobson (1903), p.653.
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Europeans applied the term pagoda for both gold and
silver coins in the south, though it was usually used
in reference to gold coins. One pagoda of the south
was equivalent to three and a half rupees of northern
India.

The rupee was introduced in the Carnatic when
the Moghuls had established themselves there at the
end of the seventeenth century. Though the rupee was
not in extensive use in the south, it was found in
.considerable numbers in the chief Mohamedan strongholds
such as Arcot and Trichonopoly.

Rupees were struck in Bombay at a very early date
after the British occupation of the island. A mint was
established there in 16071. The earliest extant specimen
of the Bombay rupee kept in the British Museum bears the
date 1677 (1).

In Madras and in South India, generally, the
minting of coins was licensed to different parties in
different places for a number of years, as in the Maratha
territories, on condition of an annual payment to the
Government issuing the licence. The European settlers
of all nationalities were admitted to this privilege
along with the natives of the land. In 1686, the East

(1) The Imperial Gazetteer of India (1907), Vol.IV,
Pe 51#- g
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India Company obtained from King James II of England
the power to coin in its forts any species of money
usually coined in India conformable to the current
standards in weight and fineness (1). The Company
henceforth directed the President and Council of Fort
St.George to take particular care that the coins struck
in their mint "' should resemble those, particularly the
rupees issued éy the lMogul at Rajamahal (2), in stamps,
inscriptions and fineness,'' The liadras rupees and
Arcot rupees coined in the”south found their way in
northern India in course of trade and other kinds of
payment.

Though the Moghul coins, particularly the
earlier ones, received high praise for ' the purity of

metal, fullness of weight and artistic execution,'

conditions .changed with the decline of the empire., With
the growth of independent units out of the toitering
Moghul empire there was the growing tendency among

the local rulers and . the officials of the mint to
debase the coinage for illicit profit. The whole country
was, in consequence,filled with a confusing mass of

rupees of different values.

PR ——————— R P e

(1) Thurston, ''History of the Coinage of the territories
of the East India Company'' (1890), p.20.
(2) A seat of the Moghul mint in Bengal.
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The circulation of different kinds of rupees,
of different denominations, minted at different places,
on different dates, gave importance to a class of
money changers, called sarafs or shroffs, who carried
on & lucrative business by means of batta or the
difference in the rate of exchange. In Bengal, besides
the siccas (1), as the newly coined rupees were ecalled,
the rupees coined in lladras, Bombay and Surat were also
current. The standard weight of ell these was the
same and the fineness was expected to be the sanme,
namely 1%% fine, or 11 oz. 15 dwts, L4 grs. 8 dec.troy (2),
bué?ggnomination was different, The siccas, again, were
supposed to have depreciated in value soon after they
came out of the mint, and a batta or discount was imposed
on all coins according to the period of their coming out
of the mint, though there might have been no depreciation

————_—-——_—————————————-———--——-— —— - - - - t— — T ——— v ———— -

(1) " The term Sicca (Sikka, from Ar.Sikka, 'a coining die'
and 'coined money' - whence Pers.Sikkazadan, 'to coin') had
been applied to newly coined,rupees‘ which were at a batta
or premium over those worn, by use ', - Hobson - Jobson

(1903), .85k

(2) Sir James Steuart, ''The Principles of Money
applied to the present state of the Coin of Bengal,''

(1772), P 1D.
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at all. The older a sicca was the greater would be
the amount of discount chérgeable on it (1).

In Bengal, the standard of money was silver. Gold
was occasionally coined, but the gold mohars were rarely
in use. The unit of the Bengal currency was the rupee.
At the beginning of the eighteenth century this rupee
was struck at the mints at Dacca, Rajmahal and Patna.
The change of the capital of the province to Murshidabad
naturally led to the establishment of a mint in that
city. The Murshidsbad mint soon came to occupy the
foremost place, while the mint at Rajmahal fell into
disuse. Murshidabad, Dacca and Patna were, therefore,
the thrﬁe places where money was coined in Bengal in
the first half of the eighteenth century. According to
James Grant's '' Analysis of the Finances of Bengal')
the mint duties of lurshidabad yielded an annual income
of Rs 304,103 in the year 1722,

Since the rupee was the standard wedium of exchange,
the bullion most in demand was silver. There was in
Bengal a constant demand for this and its importation by

- ———— {1 W — % s W~ —— T — —— {————— ——— —— - — ———— - - — o~ - o

(1) 0ld Siccas webe termed Sanwats or rupees which had
passed the third year of their currency. The Sicca rupees
were rated in the first year of their issue at 116 to 100
current rupees, in the second year they circulated at 113
to 100 current rupees, and in the third year and even af'ter
at 111 to 100 current rupees, when it was termed Sanwat,
Vide - Wilson's @ossary (1855), p.460,.

?
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foreign merchants was always welcome to the Government.
Copper coins were also in use. But while in other parts
of India copper coins circﬁlated extensively, in Bengal
the use of these coins was much limited. ©Not many
copper coins were struck in the Bengal mints during
Mqhamedan rule. The largest number of copper coins

now extant were issued by the East India Company (1).
Smaller transactions were generally carried on.through
the medium of the Kauri or Cowree (Shells) which was

the currency of the mass of the people.

An important feature of the Bengal currency was
the system of keeping accounts in terms of the '' current
ruppe'' , which was an ideal or nominal rupee and had
no existence in fact. In Bengal at the beginning of the
eighteenth century, '' the Sicca rupee was reckoned 12%
per cent better than the current rupee, that is to sajy,
100 Sicca rupees were equivalent to 112% current rupees'' (2).
This rupee current was the only thing fixed by which the
coin was valued, The reason apparently was, " because it
was not a coin itself,and therefore it could hever be
falsified or worn'' (3). A supreme effort was accordingly
made by the East Ihdia Company after the establishment

of its authority in Bengal to determine the value of the

1) Valentine, '' Copper Coins of India'', p.61.
2) Bengal General Letter, 18 January-17/17.
3) 8ir James Stewart, ''Principles of Monex;'(1772),p.17.
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rupee current and not to suffer it to be debased in

value by the debasement of the coin. The gulf that

existed between the actual rupee in circulation and

the current rupee in which accounts were kept gave a good

deal of scope to the shroff in determining the rate

of batta or discount between the two types of currency.
Another feature of the currency system in

Bengal was the drain of the specie to Delhi. The

effect of the drain made the local Government dependent

on the supply of bullion by the European traders, ''As

the King's revenue and other money are annually sent

to the Mégul's Court at Delhi, the money is sent in new

coined sicce rupees; therefore not only the bullion,

but also the rupees of other provinces imported into

Bengal in course of trade, are every year new coined

in the Bengal mint; and this sweeps away almost all

the silver, coined or uncoined, which comes into Bengal;

it goes to Delhi from whence it never returns to Bengal,

80 that after such treasure is gone from Muxadabad there

is hardly currency enough in Bengal t0 carry on any trade,

or even to go to market for provisions or necessaries

of life, till the next shipping arrives to bring fresh

supply of silver'' (1). Hence in the earlier part of

Bh) e ngnn Bagt e Rrsesnil, Yol fhiosnb XLl 3300, sadkbl

Mandeviles Letter, dated 27 November 1750, quoted by
Sir James Stewart, " Principles of Moneyg P. 63,
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the eightteenth century there was a close relation
between the Bengal currency and the importation of
silver from outside by the European traders,
A notable factor in the system of currency in
Bengal was the great hold of the house of Jagat Seth
in the finances of the province. The family originally
came to Bengal from Jodhpur in Marwar, - Manickchand,
the founder of the house at Murshidabad, was a friend
of Murshid Kuli Khan. He migrated from Dacca to
Murshidabad when Murshid Kuli Khan, in 1704, shifted
the diwani to the city known after his name.
The house had branches in the mint cities of

Dacca and Patna in Bengal and its agencies were
maintained in many other parts in India. On the death
of Seth Manickchand the headship of the family passed
to his nephew and adOpéed son Fatehchand. The financial
prestige of the house was raised to such a high pitch
by Manickchand and Fatehchand that the Emperor conferred
on the latter the title of Jagat-Seth or 'Banker of the
world' about the year 1723 (1). '

; References to their wealth were frequently made
in political writings and speeches in Ehgland throughout

(1) 'Bengal Past & Present', Vol.XX and XXI, 1920, p.146.
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the eighteenth century, They were called the

" Rothehilds of India'' (1). When Clive described

the city of Murshidabad as being as extensive and
populous as the city of London, " with this difference
that there were individuals in the first possessing
infinitely greater property than any in the last city" ,
he had obviously the Seths in his mind. DBurke once
spoke of the transactions of the house of'Jagat Seth

to have been '' similar to those of the Bank of

England (2).

The comparison of the house of Jegat Seth with
the Bank of England was not inapposite. Not merely
were its financial transactions extensive, but the
house of‘Jagat Seth performed for the Government of
Bengal many of the functions which the Bank of England
used to render to the Government of Britain in the
eighteenth century. The interests of the house of
JagatSeth were so much wrapped up and identifiied with
those of the Government of Bengal that when, in 1730,
a demand on the English was made by Fatehchand Jagat Seth,
the Nawab, Shuja Khan was determined to realize the

(1) Whee%er, "' EBarly Records of the British in India;’
p. 200, L

(2) The speeches of Edmund Burke, Vol.IV, p.342,
(London edition, 1816). |
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amount for the banker at any cost, and it was openly
given out that " Fatehchand's estate was esteemed
as the King's treasure' (1).

Sincé the days of lManickchand, this banking
house conducted the most important financial
transactions of the state. It controlled the purchase
of bullion in Bengal, and the huge gquantity of specie
at its disposal facilitated the establishment of the
mint at Murshidabad. The zamindars paid land revenue
to the Government through this banking house, and it
was largely through this agency that the annual
revenue of Bengal was remitted to Delhi by means of
drafts and orders drawn by this Bengal banking house
on the corresponding firms in Delhi. It regulated the
rate of batta payable on different kinds of rupees
that came to Bengal through the normal course of trade.

The house of Jagat Seth reached the zenith of
its prestige and prosperity at the time of Fatehchand (2),
the first holder of the title., He had immense influence
over Nawab Murshid Kuli Khan and his successors and
frustrated all attempts of the English to coin money

(1) Consultations, 2 June 1730.
(2) Head of the family from 1714 to 1744,
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at the Murshidabad mint in terms of the farman of 1717.

The guestion of the mint and currency was one
of the most difficult problems which the English had to
face ever since their settlement in Bengal. As early
as March 1687, Governor Gyfford of Fort St.George
narrating the grievances of the English, in a letter
to Aurangzib, had stated that the English trade in
Bengal was hampered for want of a timely supply of
money due to the shortage of men working in the mint.
He also complained of the charges made in the mint and
of the high customs which had to be paid for its use (1),

When in June 1687, peace was concluded at Hijli
after a struggle between the English led by their Agent,
Job Charnock, and Abdus Samad, a lieutenant of Nawab
Shaista Khan of Bengal, the guestion of having a mint
at Hugli was specifically proposed by the Engiish. The
second clause of the treaty stated, '' whereas the mint
at Rajamaul is a distance from Hughly, and the danger
great in carrying our treasure thither; - which arrive
not in time :- as we are who come from a far country,

(1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol. 629, p.43.
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under the protection of the King and Nabob;- and live

at liberty, and trade freely;- we desire that the mint

may be brought to Hughly, as at Surat!' To this

proposal the reply received from the Nawab was, ''As

to your second article for bringing the mint to Hughly,

it lies not in the Nabob's power without the King's

order; but that the Nabob will write to the King about' (1).

Nothing apparently was done to remove the :
difficulties. In 1704, the Council at Fort William
recorded in a memorandum that it would be much better
for the Company to coin their own treasure, instead of
selling it in chests, but the freedom oI the mint would
not be allowed them without the payment of heavy customs
dues which they refused to do. In 1708, Governor Pitt
of Fort St.George wanted permission to erect a mint in
Calcutta to coin rupees and mohars (gold coins similar
to those coined in the royal mint at Rajmahal) (2).

The Company's need for a mint in Calcutta,as in
Hadras,became more pronounced in 1709, when, on the
transfer of the lioghul court from the south, a higher
premium was demanded by the Bengal shroffs for bhe

(1) Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol.628, p.342.
(2 idem, Vol. 69, p.183;
See also Chapter II, D.
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acceptance of the rupees coined by the Company in
. itie Madras mint. The Company, accordingly, began to
exert itself to secure the sanction of the Emperor
to have a mint of its own in Bengal.

It should be noted that all money coined by
the Company in iadres and elsewhere was in imitation,
or rather the exact reproduction,of the coins issued
from the Moghul mints. As Stanley Lane-Poole has
remarked, '' the Company's coinage was at this period
simple forgery, though the fact that it passed among
the natives shows that it was intrinsically as good as
the imperial currency, from which it epparently could
not be distinguished" (1).

The guestion of currency and of the mint forwmed
a large part of the petitions submitted by the Surman
Embassy to the Emperor Farrukhsiyary The farman granted
by Farrukhsiyar in 1717 decreed that the liadras rupees
of the same goodness as the Surat siccas might pass
current in Bengal without any discount and that the
Siccas coined at Bombay might also be legal tender
throughout the whole empire, Bengal included. The
farman was discreetly silent regarding the use of the
Murshidabad mint prayed for by the English,

(1) Lane-Poole, 'The Coins of the lioghul Emperors',
p. XCIX. :
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Provision, however, was made in separate

hasb-ul-hukms or decrees under the Vazir's seal

issued as part of the farman for the coining of the
gold and silver of the Company in the liurshidebad
mint. The importance of the measure justifies the

guotation of the relevant hasb-ul-hukm which was

addressed to ''all mutsuddies (subordinate officials)
in the Government that are at present or hereafter
may come in Bengal at Curremabasud'' (Murshidabad) and
ran thus :-

"*Know ye that at this instant lr.John Surman,
Coja Surhaad and Mr.Stephenson for and on behalf of
the English have through the intercession of the high
ministers presented their petition té His Imperial
Majesty setting forth that in the Mints at Rajamall and
Dacca the Company's gold and silver were coined. It
is now some time since that at Curremabaud (Muxadabad)
the mint has been settled. They hope, according to
former custom, to have the privilege of coining the
Company's money there, and that the iMint Mutsuddies

do not make any unaccustomary demands only taking the

mint charges as customary and that in the season when

other merchants' money are coined they may have three
days in the week: for the coining of the Company's

money.
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" It is commanded that you accordingly settle
for which reason this husbalhookum is wrote that you
do according to former custom settle the coining of
the Company's gold and silver in the mint at
Curremabaud and in the season of coining of other
merchants' money if it be not against the King's
interest, let them have three days in the week.
Regard this well., - Written the 9th day of the lioon
Zeelhedge, the Hth year of His Majesty's reign" (1).

The English Company was accordingly permitted
to coin money at the Murshidabad mint on three days
in the week on payment only of the customary mint
charges. But, despite the imperial permission, the
English could not have the use of the mint in terms
of the farman due primarily to the opposition of
Fatehchand, the banker and financier, who had an
enormous hold on the successive Nawabs of Bengal (2).

The failure of the English to have the use of
the mint at lMurshidabad did not hinder their business
in Bengal. They were well supplied with money coined
at Madras, where the mint charge was lowered by one per
cent (3). The authorities of Fort St.George informed

the Calcutta Council that they would send to Bengal no
£1; Home Miscellaneous Series, Vol.6%0, Nos. 12 and 1.

5 Chapter II, p.J27
(3) Consultations, 17 May 1725.
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less than one hundred chests of treasure coined into
Madras rupees to keep the Company's business going.

Of this amount thirty chests were sent in July 1726 and
thirty-six by June 1727 (1).

The relations between the English and
Fatehchand varied with circumstances. Fatehchand
coined money at the Murshidaebad mint on behalf of the
Government, He was always eéger to. purchase bullion
which foreigners brought into the country to pay for
their exports. His control over the market was soO
strong that he actually dictated the price of precious
metals. In Amgust 1727, when.the English offered
sixteen chests of silver fdr sale, they were surprised
to find that none of the shroffs dared gquote a price
higher than what Fatehchand had mentioned, They were
consequently constrained to sell the bullion to
Fatehchand for whaﬁ he had offered (2).

In spite of occasional rifts, the English had
to depend on Fatehchand for financial help in the form
of loan for long and short terms. In 1728, the Nawab
of Dacca refused permission to the English to use the
local mint unless he was handsomely rewarded. The
English Council at Dacca were, accordingly, compelled

1) Consultations, 2f July 1726.
2 iden, 28 August 1727.
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to ask for a recommendation of the Calcutta Council
to Fatehchand for a loan of an additionallakh of rupees (1)
The authority exercised by Fatehchand over the
comme rce And administration of Bengal was amply
demonstrated in the affair of Kantu, the broker of
the English Company at Kasimbazar (2). The settlement
of the matter on payment of Rs 130,000 by the English
to Fatehchand did not go far enough to bring about a
change of heart as between the English and Fatehchand.
In May 1731, the Kasimbazar factory informed the
Council in Calcutta of their financial difficulties
as Fatehchand did not care to lend them any amount (3).
In September 1751, a representation was made
to the Nawab alleging that the English had brought only
lMadras and Arcot rupees and no bullion that season. The
Nawab forbade the currency %guﬁ?ose rupees and 'orqered
duty to be laid on them and/they should be receiyed but
as bullion'. Fatehchend knew that the allegation was
false. He himself had purchased twenty chests of
bullion from the English at Kasimbazar. Noné the less,,
he was the first to obey the Nawab's order and, in

compliance with it, put Rs 50,000 into the mint to be

Chapter II, p.é3-

1) Consultations, 22 April 1728.
2 :
%) Consultations, 24 May 1751,
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melted down (1).

The Government was not happy about the importation
of Madras rupees into Bengal. In Madras the English had
a mint of their own. The importation of large gquantities
of Madras rupees into Bengal naturally reduced the
income of the Government in respect of the Murshidabad
mint charges. Complaints were, in fact, made of the
loss sustained by the Government as a result of the
importation of Madras rupees into Bengal (2).

While the situation continued to be tense,
certain rash and indiscreet action, on the part of the
English, precipitated a crisis, and orders were issued
to stop their trade (3). The usual method adopted
by the English to secure the restitution of their trade
was of no avail. The English soon concluded that
Fatehchand was at the root of the whole trouble. His
laconic answer that '' he would not be the enemy of the
English'', when the latter sought his help in resolving
the tangle left no room for doubt that "the first
essential thing necessary”was to reimburse the banker
for the loss he had sustained in Kantu's case (4). They

now determined to make good the loss of their friendship

(1) Cogsultations, 1% September 1/31.
idem , 17 October 1731.
idem, 17 October 1751. See also Chapter II,
| P §8-73
(%) idem, 23 October 1731.
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with Fatehchend, who, they were convinced, had the
greatest influence over the Nawab.

In an all out effort to secure the good offices
of Fatehchand in favour of the English, the Council
at Kasimbazar were empowered to deal with him
according to necessity (1). Subsequent events soon
proved that his friendship which was regained by
reimbursing him with Rs 50,000 was of the greatest
advantage to the English in the dark days of 1731 (2)s

The English had to experience difficulty in
several centres before the normal flow of currency and
of business was resumed. In May 1752, reports from
Patna reached the Council in Calcutta about the extreme
scarcity of money in the local market " through the
dread of Fatehchand who long since forbade his factory
dealing with the English, which prohibition still
continued'" (3). To cope with the situation, bills of
exchange for heavy sums had to be sent to Patna, and a
letter of credit for Rs 150,000 was procured on Fatehchand's
factory at Patna so as 1o " exempt the English from
paying any more exchange'" (4).

(1 Consultations, 1 November 1731.
22 See Chapter II, ©p. 8!

3) Consultations, 8 May 1752

(& idem, 12 June 1732.
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Apprehensions were felt at Bombay that the
disputes with the Goveranment might hinder the exchange
of bills from Surat to Kasimbazar. But there was
obviously no difficulty on this score as there was no
mention of any dispute regarding the currency of the
first instalment of Rs 100,000 sent from Surat by bills
of exchange at the rate of 102% Surat rupees for 100
siccas (which was eguivalent to Rs 97,799-8-3 sicca)
payable to John Stackhouse of the Kasimbazar Council (1).

That better relations were resumed regarding
the sale and coining of bullion at Murshidabad is
evident from the decision of the Calcutta Council to
disburse the stock of rupees they had in Calcutta
among local merchants and to despatch the silver
arriving from Europe to Kasimbazar (2).

Since the good will of Fatehchand was valued Dby
the English for the smooth working of their finances,
they realised the necessity of friendly relations with
nim. In 1732, the Council in Calcutta directed the
Kasimbazar factory that since Fatehchand was willing
to lend them money at interest, they must prefer him

to any other financier (3).

- S S i G G ST S S D S o S S G S G G S S S S G D S S S G S S D GRS G O D S D G W " S ————

1) Consultations, 17 July and 14 August 1732.
2 idem, 21 August 17352.
e idem, 11 December 1752.
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There was & good deal of demand for treasure,
in the form of both rupees and silver, at Kasimbazar in
August 1734. Practically all rupees available in the
Calcutta warehouse and thirty chests of silver were
gent to Kasimbazar to pay off the ligbilities of the
English there.But the English were at a considerable
expenditure in disposing of their money ané bullion on
account of thelstrict control exercised over the sale
of specie by Fatehchand. He wdid not allow any other
merchant to purchase this commodity and w..ld dictated
the price of silver and rupees as he thought proper.
The English complained of their misfortune but had no
remedy (1). It was only on rare occasions that the
English could enter into direct financial relations
with any other merchant.

The visit paid by Fatehchand to the English
factory at Kasimbazar, in June 1736, was an event of
considerable importance., It demonstrated the restoration
of good relations between the banker and the English
Company. Not merely did he profess his friendship for
the English and recount how he had helped them at the
darbar in the past, but he also informed them of the

——— . —— ——— . —— —— ————————-————————-—---—-.-——————-——————-—.—

(1) Consultations, J September 173k
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arrival of several farmans from Delhi in favour of
the English (1). The visit, no doubt, cemented good
understanding between the two parties. Once again
the importance of preferring Fatehchand to all other

creditors at Murshidabad was emphasized (2).

How far Fatehchand really intended to befriend
the English was doubtful. For, in a letter, dated 31
October 1736, the Council at Kasiﬁbazar informed the
Calcutta Council that '' at the intercession of
Fatehchand Saw the Nawab had given his orders that as
the batta (rate of discount) on iadras rupees to make
siccas was but 3% per cent and Arcot but 4% per cent,
it shall be 7% per cent on both, and the Nabob had taken
muchulkas (undertaking) from the zamindars about the
country not to take lMadras or Arcot rupees at any other
batta' (3).

The raising of the batta on the Madras and Arcot
rupees caused considerable commotion among the Engliéh at
Kasimbazar and in Calcutta. The English tried to put off
the payment of the high batta charges as best?ihey could
by despatching;  larger quantity of bullion to Kasimbazar

with a view to selling them to Fatehchand (4).

(1) Consultations,21 June 1736

2 Idem, 24 July 1738
Idem, 8 Noveuber 17 g

2 Idem, 13 December 1756,
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The Council in Calcutta repeatedly advised
the Kasimbazar factory to be alert regarding the
necess ity of securing a redress of the grievances
of the English on the batta guestion. They, at
the same time, advised their representatives at
Kasimbazar not to do anything in haste and entertained
the hope that the affair might ' drop of itself" (1).
None the less, they intimated to the Council at
Kasimbazar that '' as Fatehchand had been the chief
promotee of this order, possibly their selling him
a quantity of bullion might be the means of bringing
him to temper and give room to mention this affair in
such a manner as to gain the desifed effect'' (2).

Soon afterwards, the Council in Calcutta were
informed that Fatehchand was favourably inclined towards
the English and that the immediate sale of a quantity
of bullion to him would be of great help in having
their grievances redressed (3).

When the English vakil at Kasimbazar offered to
Fatehchand the silver that had arrived from Calcutta
and requested him to exert himself for the withdrawal
of the order regarding the batta on Madras rupees, he

told the English that he could not at that time take

1) Consultations, 1% December 1736.
2 idem, 1% December. 1736,
3 idem, 16 December 1/%6.
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their silver and desired that it might be kept in the
local factory till such time as suited his convenience,
As to the batta on Madras rupees, he said that it was
not a proper time to apply to the Nawab to have it
taken off immediately, but he hoped to effect it in
a month. At the same time, he advised the English
not to feel uneasy and assured them that if in the
interim they.should have occasion for four or five
lakhs of rupees for the use of the Company, he would
advance the amount for a month or two without interest (1).
On 2 February 1757, the Council at Kasimbazar
informed the Calcutta Council that they had sold their
bullion to Fatehchand who ''allowed 2063 for 240 Siccas
wt., the new Pillar Dollars and the Mexico at 2061'' (2).
The batta guestion continued to trouble the
English, The merchants at Dacca were unwilling to take
Madras rupees without deduction (3). The merchants in
Calcutta informed the Council that they had advices from
their gumastas (agents) at Santipur (4) that the Arcot
rupees would not pass there, They accordingly returned
the money and were given eight chests of bullion by the

R ———————— R A i R ——

(13 Consultations, 16 December 1736.
@)oo LAOMy 7 February 1757.
2; idem, 10 March 1737.

An important centre for the manufacture of cloth.
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Council for payment to their local distributors and
suppliers (1). At Kasiumbazar the English preferred
to keep the liadras rupees in stock rather than make
payment in them at an under rate. They tried to tide
over the difficulty by teking a loan of Rs 200,000
from Fatehchand who was to be preferred to any other
creditor (2).

Approached by the English vakil to intercede
with the Nawab to secure them a remission of the batta
on Madras rupees, Fatehchend stated that ''the order
affected himself as much as anybody and that it was
originally levelled at him by means of Chainray,
Alamchand's Dewan, who represented there was a great
deficiency in the revenue of the mint occasioned by
the want of bullion to coin and that he (Fatehchand)
had made several attempts to get the order revoked
but in vain, that it must be a work of time, and it
would be the best way for the English not to stir in
it'" (3).

When, in May 1737, twenty-three chests of treasure
arrived at Kasimbazar, the whole quantity was sold to

Fatehchand and the proceeds ''appropriated as far as

they would go to discharge the interest notes I ¢ S
(1)Consultations, 29 August 1737.
2 idem, 16 April 1737.
E idem,, 16 April 1737.
idem, 30 May 1737
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The entire.amount of bullion which was imported in
Calcutta by the ship 'New Castle' was despatched to
Kasimbazer, and the Council there were once again
instructed to procure the currency of Madras rupees (1).
Payments in bullion were also <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>